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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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I am pleased to present my report to
the shareholders.

Bl i Se A

(FER)

Mr. TAN Harry Chua,
Chairman
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
EREHEE®

245 RESULTS

WE FE—HAFENHZ=ZTHIEZ BHBUERE > For the financial year ended 30 June 2015, the Group recorded
A 42 B B 15 % 3 M 103,437,000 T ( =% a turnover of HK$103,437,000 (2014: HK$106,215,000) and a
— 04k #5106,215,000 9C) > T B A A #E gross profit of HK$82,456,000 (2014: HK$81,888,000). These
82,456,000 7G ( - F — PU4E : i #81,888,000
JG) o MR F B B AT SCEES 2 AR E
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results were mainly attributable to the improved rental income of
investment properties of the Group as explained below together with
increased gross profit margin of 80% (2014: 77%). Meanwhile, the
R 3 2 80% ( & — DU 4E : 77%) o HLL[E  turnover slightly dropped by 3% as compared with that of the last

> A EBEY EHEWR D - $HLE4EE  corresponding year, owing to reduced proceeds from sale of properties
B EHEBT #3% o of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FE A )
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A BB G R B T 114,451,000 T ( & — 10
4 i ¥5101,269,000 00 ) o A HE A A R
13%¥E R -

RESULTS (Continued)

Moreover, the Group accounted for other income of HK$23,648,000
(2014: HK$23,333,000) that arose mainly from the imputed and bank
interest income; as well as an increase in fair value of its investment
properties in the sum of HK$57,224,000 (2014: HK$56,171,000).

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to HK$101,586,000 (2014: HK$94,972,000), which grew
by 7% from that of the previous year pursuant to increase in rental
turnover, other income and fair values of investment properties, with
basic earnings per share of HK$0.463 (2014: HK$0.433). Excluding
effect of fair-value change in investment properties together with the
related tax effect, the underlying net profit of core rental business
for the year attributable to owners was HK$52,578,000 (2014:
HK$46,211,000), showing a rise of 14% from that of the last year by
virtue of improved rental income.

Taken account of other comprehensive income of exchange difference
on translation to presentation currency, the total comprehensive
income attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$114,451,000 (2014: HK$101,269,000) for the year, showing a
growth of 13% from that of the previous year.
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DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 3 Hong
Kong cents (2014: 2.5 Hong Kong cents) per share to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register of members on
23 December 2015. An interim dividend of 2.5 Hong Kong cents per
share were paid to the shareholders of the Company during the year
which, in aggregate, gives total dividends for the year of 5.5 Hong
Kong cents per share. Subject to approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the warrants for
the final dividend are expected to be despatched to those entitled on or
about 8 January 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year under review, the operating segments of the Group
consisted of property rental and property sales in the mainland China.
The rental segment of investment properties in Beijing and Shanghai,
the major segment assets of the Group with the growth of rental
performance, stayed as the key and solid contributor of revenue and
results of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The core rental business of investment properties of the Group, which
were quality offices in Pudong in Shanghai and well-established mall
together with carparks in Chaoyang District in Beijing with asset value
in an aggregate of HK$2,000,101,000 (2014: HK$1,930,079,000),
performed steadily well in the year. And the total revenue of
property rental was HK$103,437,000 (2014: HK$96,862,000), which
contributed to all (2014: 91%) of the total turnover of the Group and
rose by 7% from that of the last year. In addition, the fair value of
these investment properties appreciated in the total of HK$57,224,000
(2014: HK$56,171,000). As such, the segment results of property
rental reported a profit of HK$139,691,000 (2014: HK$129,538,000),
denoting a constant increment of 8% from that of the last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

In Beijing, the mid-end and mass-market retail business still procured
high occupancy rate and steady rental growth in the well-established
community mall of the Group known as “Uptown Mall” in the
year. The mall rental was in the sum of HK$36,386,000 (2014:
HK$35,216,000), representing a slight increase of 3% as compared
with that of the last year and sharing 35% (2014: 33%) of the total
revenue of the Group. As regards fair value of these investment
properties, the Group recognized appreciation in the sum of
HK$16,801,000 (2014: HK$13,254,000). Consequently, the segment
results (including the improved appreciation of properties) reported
a profit of HK$44,119,000 (2014: HK$36,618,000), recording a
moderate growth of 20% from that of the last year.

With limited residential units available for sale by the Group in
Beijing, the proceeds from sale of residential units held by the Group
at “Chaoyang Garden” were nil (2014: HK$9,353,000), resulting in an
administrative loss of HK$158,000 (2014: a profit of HK$7,103,000)
in the segment results.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

In Shanghai, the buoyant growth in financial industry boosted leasing
momentum and net take-up occurred in the office market in prime
business district in Pudong, where substantially benefited from the
favorable policy in the China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone. In
the year, the quality offices of the Group known as “Eton Place”
primely located at prominent financial area of Little Lujiazui were
fully let at improved rental rate. And the rental revenue amounted
to HK$67,051,000 (2014: HK$61,646,000), displaying a rise of 9%
from that of the previous year and making up 65% (2014: 58%) of the
total turnover of the Group. The fair value of these office properties
appreciated in the sum of HK$40,423,000 (2014: HK$42,917,000).
Thereby, the segment results (including the appreciation of properties)
was making a profit of HK$95,572,000 (2014: HK$92,920,000),
representing a slight increment of 3% from the one of the last year.

As for Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”),
a joint venture in which the Company holds 49%, Zhen Wah has
ceased business operations since the expiry of its operation period
in January 2014. Thereafter, Zhen Wah has been winding down its
activities, including dealing with terminated tenants’ claims and
litigations.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Zhen Wah holds a piece of land located in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen (the “Land”). In the year under review, the joint
venture partners of Zhen Wah jointly worked and consulted with the
relevant government departments on a master proposal for feasibility,
comprehensive planning and design of the Land (the “Discussion
Proposal”). The Discussion Proposal comprised various detailed
matters and in particular, compensation arrangements for land
expropriation and relocation of a portion of the Land for the purpose
of re-development and city infrastructure (the “Compensation
Arrangements”) and a re-development plan which includes increasing
the plot ratio and rezoning certain areas of the Land together with
arrangements for the Land to be divided between the joint venture
partners (the “Re-development Plan”).

Although significant work has been undertaken in relation to agreeing
on and implementing the Compensation Arrangements, no material
or significant progress has been made regarding the Re-development
Plan. The joint venture parties have not reached any agreement on the
Re-development Plan and no clearance or approval has been obtained
in relation thereto. Hence, the Discussion Proposal remains at an
exploratory stage at this time as far as the Re-development Plan is
concerned.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The slow progress was largely attributable to possible fundamental
differences in the negotiation stance of the joint venture parties.
In addition, this was aggravated by changes of shareholders
and management of the party of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) to the joint venture (as the Company was so advised)
which inevitably prolonged and made the negotiations more difficult
and inconclusive.

If the joint venture partners cannot come to terms or relevant official
approvals cannot be obtained, based on PRC legal advice received
by the Group, the Land will eventually be sold by way of public
auction or other applicable means in accordance with PRC laws, and
any surplus (after settlement of all relevant liabilities and tax) will be
distributed to the joint venture partners in accordance with their equity
contributions.

Due to the complexities involved and the current divergent stance
of the joint venture parties, it is not possible to set any timetable for
the negotiations to come to a conclusion. There is also no assurance
that the parties can reach agreement, in which case further dispute or
litigation may arise with respect to matters concerning Zhen Wah and/
or its assets. The Company will monitor the situation closely and may,
at the appropriate time and circumstances, initiate court proceedings to
force a compulsory winding up of Zhen Wah.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

The financial position of the Group remains sound and liquid. During
the year under review, the financing and treasury policies of the
Group were managed and controlled at the corporate level and prudent
manner, to utilize the group funding and to manage the financial risks
effectively. At 30 June 2015, the equity attributable to its owners
amounted to HK$1,974,794,000 (2014: HK$1,871,313,000) with net
asset value per share of HK$9.00 (2014: HK$8.53). Total unsecured
and secured bank borrowings of the Group amounted to about
HK$172,192,000 (2014: HK$198,810,000), which were in Hong
Kong dollars and repayable within three years on floating rate basis.
As at 30 June 2015, the gearing ratio of the Group was 9% (2014:
11%) based on the total debt of the Group to its equity attributable to
owners of the Company. No significant exposure to foreign currency
fluctuations affected the Group in the year save for the net exchange
gain of HK$411,000 (2014: HK$646,000) and no financial instruments
were used for hedging purpose in the year. Meanwhile, the recent
fluctuation of renminbi yuans may affect the financial performance
and position of the Group, which the Group will assess and minimize
the adverse impact.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Resources and Liquidity

In the year under review, there was sufficient cashflow as generated by
rental revenue of investment properties in Shanghai and Beijing. As at
30 June 2015, the Group’s fixed bank deposits and bank balance and
cash stood at HK$252,829,000 (2014: HK$223,761,000), denominated
primarily in renminbi yuans. With sufficient cashflow, the Group
maintained an un-utilised credit facilities of HK$11,000,000 (2014:
HK$11,000,000) as working capital at floating interest rate as at 30
June 2015.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2015, the Group pledged its properties with a total
carrying value of HK$850,864,000 (2014: HK$820,157,000), an
assignment of rental and sale proceeds from such properties and a
charge over shares in respect of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group to financial institutions as security against general banking
facilities granted to the Group, and also pledged certain of its bank
deposits in the sum of HK$7,488,000 (2014: HK$25,581,000) to banks
to secure banking facilities and home loans granted to the home buyers
of property project of the Group. As at the end of the reporting period,
the Group has given guarantees in respect of settlement of home loans
provided by banks to the home buyers of a property project in Beijing.
As at 30 June 2015, the Group had given guarantees in respect of such
home loans of HK$13,313,000 (2014: HK$20,600,000). The Directors
of the Company consider that the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts at their initial recognition and at the end of the
reporting period are insignificant on the basis of the low loan ratio.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, it is believed that China’s economy will enter a
new stage of slower but more resilient growth, underpinned by solid
economic fundamentals, the positive momentum in economic and
financial development, the ongoing official monetary reforms and
fiscal stimulus measures. It is believed that the slowing national
economy will restructure to drive growth on emerging sectors such
as the services industry and domestic consumption, bolstering leasing
demand of office and retail sectors in the long term.

In Beijing, the market is anticipated to witness a further influx of new
shopping areas, aggressive growth of on-line retail sales and official
ongoing anti-graft campaign suppressing luxury consumption that
will decelerate rental growth and occupancy rates of retail market.
Nevertheless, a growing middle-class with enhancing urban disposable
income and improving brand awareness from local residents will
stabilize household spending and leasing activities of mid-end and
mass-market retailers in Uptown Mall. The Group will continue to
strategically optimize tenant mix and brand portfolio from time to time
in line with shoppers’ need and lifestyle, and to enhance shopping
experience and services at “Uptown Mall” so as to evolve and
reinforce its niche and position for sustaining high occupancy rate and
constant revenue to the Group.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

In Shanghai, the burgeoning development of financial services will
be the major driver for economic growth. Hence, outlook for office
market is positive, particularly Pudong given its strong position
as China’s financial hub, despite impending glut of premier office
supply and infrastructural construction nearby Eton Place. And it is
anticipated that the solid vitality of small- and medium-sized domestic
enterprises especially those of financial sector will continue to foster
office demand. To maintain high occupancy rate and steady recurring
revenue, the Group will strive for retention and expansion of existing
tenants and target on small- and medium-sized domestic tenants for
new leases at competitive rental strategies.

In Shenzhen, the improved master plan of costal recreational zone
in the western part of Shenzhen Bay associated with the cessation
of operation of oil and gas depots nearby the Land as recently
promulgated will enhance the potential for high-quality residential
development in the region of Shekou, Nanshan District where the
Land is situated. The Company has been and will continue to closely
monitor the position with Zhen Wah. A flexible approach will need
to be adopted and hence, the Company will continue to negotiate
with the PRC joint venture party and relevant government authorities.
However, if it becomes clear that a satisfactory resolution cannot
be reached by agreement, the Company may proceed to petition to
compulsorily wind up Zhen Wah under the supervision of the PRC
court.

APPRECIATION

The Board of Directors would like to thank the shareholders, bankers,
customers, suppliers of the Group and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group and all staff of the Group for their
considerable contributions to the Group in the year.

TAN Harry Chua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 September 2015
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The brief biographical details of each Director under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and updated information on
Directors pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are as
follows:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, aged 69, is the Chairman of the Board
nominated in 2013 and has been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company since 2009. He is also a member and the chairman of
nomination committee of the Board and a member of remuneration
committee of the Board. He is primarily responsible for overall
strategic leadership and direction of the Group. He has over 43 years
of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate, banking,
hotel, brewery, airline and security. He holds directorships in various
companies in Hong Kong, mainland China and the Philippines
including but not limited to other public companies, LT Group, Inc.
(“LT Group”) and Philippine National Bank (“PNB”), securities of
which are all listed on The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”).
Besides, he previously was directors of other public companies listed
on the PSE, PAL Holdings, Inc. (“PAL”) and MacroAsia Corporation
(“MacroAsia”). He holds a bachelor degree in chemical engineering.
He is related to other Executive Directors of the Company being
brother of Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank; uncle of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr.
Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales and Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy;
and brother-in-law of Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, aged 66, is the Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of the Company and has been appointed
since 2006. He is responsible for overall performance of the Group.
He is also members of the remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board as well as directors of most subsidiaries of
the Company. He has over 29 years of senior managerial experience
specialising in real estate and banking. Over the years, he held senior
positions as the chief executive officers of Eton Properties (Holdings)
Limited (“Eton”) in Hong Kong and Oceanic Bank, a state chartered
commercial bank in San Francisco and vice chairman of Allied
Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited, a restricted licensed
bank in Hong Kong. He holds a bachelor degree in applied science, a
master degree in business administration and an honorary doctorate
in humane letters. He is related to other Executive Directors of the
Company being brother of Mr. TAN Harry Chua; uncle of Mr. TAN
Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales and Mr. PASCUAL
Ramon Sy; and brother-in-law of Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming.

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, aged 49, is an Executive Director of the
Company and has been appointed since 1997. He is in charge of
business development, investment and management of the Group.
He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). He has about 24 years of senior
managerial experience specializing in real estate, banking, hotel,
brewery, airline, milling and security. He holds directorships in
other public companies, LT Group, PNB, PAL, MacroAsia and
Victorias Milling Company, Inc. (“Victorias”), securities of which
are all listed on PSE. And he is the president and director of Tanduay
Distillers, Inc. as well as the president and chief executive officer
of Eton Properties Philippines, Inc. in the Philippines. He has held
directors/senior executive positions in various companies in Hong
Kong, mainland China and the Philippines. He holds a master degree
in executive master of business and administration program as well as
a bachelor degree in civil engineering. He is related to other Executive
Directors of the Company being nephew of Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Dr.
CHAN Wing Kit, Frank and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming; brother of Mr.
TAN Michael Gonzales; and brother-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon

Sy.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, aged 49, is an Executive Director of
the Company and has been appointed since 2013. He is in charge of
business development, investment and management of the Group.
He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company in the PRC. He
has over 22 years of senior managerial experience specialising in real
estate, banking, hotel, airline, milling and brewery. He holds a number
of senior positions in various organisations and is the president and
director of LT Group, and is directors of various companies in Hong
Kong, mainland China and the Philippines as well as other public
companies, PAL, MacroAsia, Victorias and PNB. He previously
was the chairman of The Association of Young Filipino-Chinese
Entrepreneurs and is currently the vice president of Federation
of Filipino-Chinese Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Inc.
(“FFCCCI”). He holds a bachelor degree of applied science in civil
engineering from University of British Columbia. He is related to
other Executive Directors of the Company, being the nephew of Mr.
TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank and Mr. CHEUNG Chi
Ming; the brother of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao; and brother-in-law of
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming, aged 71, is an Executive Director of the
Company and has been appointed since 1999. He is in charge of
business development, investment and management of the Group. He
is also directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He possesses
about 45 years of senior managerial experience specializing in real
estate, brewery and services industry. He was senior executives of
Eton and brewery companies in mainland China. He holds a bachelor
degree in agricultural and water conservancy. He is related to other
Executive Directors of the Company being brother-in-law of Mr. TAN
Harry Chua and Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank; and uncle of Mr. TAN
Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales and Mr. PASCUAL
Ramon Sy.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, aged 56, is an Executive Director of
the Company and has been appointed since 2006. He is in charge of
business development, investment and management of the Group. He
is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company in the PRC. He has
over 33 years of senior managerial experience specializing in real estate
and manufacturing. He currently holds a senior executive position in
Eton, and serves as directors in several companies engaging businesses
of real estate, manufacturing and logistics in mainland China, Hong
Kong and the Philippines. He holds a bachelor degree in economics.
He is related to several Executive Directors, being married to the
niece of three other Executive Directors of the Company, namely, Mr.
TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank and Mr. CHEUNG Chi
Ming; and brother-in-law of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao and Mr. TAN
Michael Gonzales.

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, aged 57, is an Executive Director
of the Company and has been appointed since 2007. He is also the
financial controller of the Group and directors of most subsidiaries
of the Company. He holds a master degree in business administration
and has over 32 years of senior managerial experience specializing
in the field of real estate, accounting and finance in Hong Kong and
mainland China. Prior to joining the Group in 1993, he worked at a
major accounting firm and held various senior accounting positions in

property companies in Hong Kong.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth, aged 64, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company and has been appointed since 1994.
He is also the chairman of both audit committee and remuneration
committee, as well as a member of nomination committee of the
Board. He is a veteran in the jewellery business in which he has over
43 years of senior managerial experience. He is managing a number
of companies engaged in diamond trading, jewellery manufacturing,
wholesaling and exports activities in Hong Kong and South East Asian
countries. Currently, he also serves as an independent non-executive
director of Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. SY Robin Chua, aged 80, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and has been appointed since 1994. He
is also members of audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board. He is the president of Asian
Shipping Corporation, a shipowner engaged in shipping business in
the Philippines and an independent director of LT Group. He is also a
lawyer and honorary president of FFCCCI. He holds senior executive
positions in some companies engaged in shipbuilding and repairing
business as well as heavy construction equipment trading field in the

Philippines.

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John, aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and has been appointed since 2010. He
is also members of audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board. He has about 45 years of senior
managerial experience in banking business. Currently, he also
serves as an independent non-executive director of Allied Banking
Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited. He holds doctor of philosophy in
corporate management, a master degree in business administration
and a bachelor degree in laws. He is an associate of the Institute of
Financial Accountants in United Kingdom, registered financial planner
of the Society of Registered Financial Planner in Hong Kong and in
mainland China as well as certified risk planner of The Institute of
Crisis and Risk Management in Hong Kong.

Mr. GO Patrick Lim, aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and was appointed in 2013. He is also a
member of audit committee of the Board. He is the chief executive
officer of Paramount Life & General Insurance Corporation. He
has over 27 years of senior managerial experience specializing in
corporate finance and private/public equity having worked for Credit
Suisse First Boston, Bank of America Asia Limited and Bankers Trust
Company. He is also a member of World Presidents Organization in
Singapore and a member of Singapore Institute of Directors. He holds
a bachelor’s degree in Economics (Wharton) and a master degree
in business administration (Darden). He was formerly a director of
Del Monte Pacific Limited, which is listed on Singapore Exchange
Limited and independent directors of Pancake House Inc. and Allied
Banking Corporation (merged into PNB), both of which are listed on
the PSE.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting
their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2015.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are property investment and development.

The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2015 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 34.

On 8 January 2015, a final dividend of 2.5 Hong Kong cents per share
was paid to the Company’s shareholders as a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2014.

An interim dividend of 2.5 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to
HK$5,485,000 was paid to the shareholders of the Company during
the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 3 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to HK$6,707,000
payable to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 23 December 2015
which, in aggregate, will give a total of dividends for the year
ended 30 June 2015 of 5.5 Hong Kong cents per share.
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SKECHERS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The increase in the fair value of the investment properties which has
been credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$57,224,000.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in notes
15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
were the retained earnings of HK$24,348,000 as at 30 June 2015.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Chairman
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
Mr. WONG Sai Tat
(resigned on 13 July 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. SY Robin Chua

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

Mr. GO Patrick Lim
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Name of Director

WK TR 5 A Mr. TAN Harry Chua

Bk AT+ Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Bt B ek Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao

SR e Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming

HOE A Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
R BT Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan

# B o) Mr. WONG Sai Tat e 3

HEEE g Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
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SR AT I Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr.
TAN Harry Chua, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming, Mr. CHIU Siu Hung,
Allan and Dr. SY Robin Chua will retire by rotation and all being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed,
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Law 99, for a term of two years and they have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2015, the interests and short positions held by the
Directors or the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates in the shares of the Company (‘“Shares”), shares of any of
its associated corporations and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

AR C#EAT
4 e e H
PN £
(B £)
Personal
NE
number of interests in
issued ordinary underlying
shares of shares pursuant

HE3% 2 I
1B B A
PN £

(%5 47)

B 2t 3 A
CEATRAR
HAAY

Personal
Total interests
as approximate
percentage of

the Company to share options Aggregate issued share
(long position)  (long position) interests capital
(Mt —) (st =)

(note 1) (note 2)

636,000 1,500,000 2,136,000 0.97%

- 1,650,000 1,650,000 0.75%

- 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.68%

- 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.68%

80,000 1,500,000 1,580,000 0.72%

- 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.46%

- 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.46%

- 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.46%

- 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.46%

100,000 700,000 800,000 0.36%



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
HHEREE @

A2 ey B g B R A ()

— o E S M B RE £ 0 AR 2w AR 42001 A R B 5 i T
F——FTAZTHART 2R LFaE
R B A A R S B S IR TEL R 51 S5 25 TH A -

T ETESRTIR AR BB AN R R T —RAE
ANHZ T HZE AT I A 8 (R1219,403,681 X
) B E A L -

[

wttE AR F - HELA T ARHEA LT
H o

W b SCHT 8 A o MR R R 0 SR 352 1k AR
N F AT B 2 RE A 4 R s R B T
BAFT#E A Eh AR EHIETERLS
ZAEHESY QI B M A A 7 RS BT > H
LA SR NIRRT ) P Ne.
B FE—HAENAZTH - BEIEAEA LA
g HAT o B 48 2 A (0 96 L a% 0 1 58 XV )
HO AT o J A~ A B B A o 2 R R A AT T
REGE IR o bR ESCTEEE & 4h > BB F
—HAEANAZ=ZTHIFERER > #E - AR
H AT BN BB A AT A B BN M
7 B AT G A AT R AR A R S A T B
BN A] G 8 5% W 01 55 XV ) ATl J £y 5
IR A A7 (A

o 240 B M A A 2 2 B

BRI &5 5 P 5 MR T G 28 25 TH N W 4 - A
O3 B BCHAT: AT B JB 2% R A AR R A Sl 48 T
SEARANT 2 PR o AT ALY T R AR A
AT ] At 35 A B B IS R 2 T A i
AARAETE A > A A W H S A0S TC 0 18
VAR o M S0 AT: o] E M)~ BAT A o 5% 2
RER LGB AR A ) 2 @8 5 o

8

3=

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1. The Directors’ interests in the underlying Shares are through share options granted
by the Company on 25 October 2011 under the 2001 Scheme, details of which are
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

2. The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 219,403,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2015.

3. Mr. WONG Sai Tat resigned as Director of the Company on 13 July 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, none of the Directors,
the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, none
of the Directors, the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates had been granted or exercised any rights to subscribe for
any equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) during the
year ended 30 June 2015.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as described in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and none
of the Directors of the Company, their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such rights during the year.



26

SECMECFTEEER | WA R A

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
HHEREE @

o PR B TR T 2 A

AFEEANLEEASRS B R
BRI > A2 /) LT # 3 A 2 oE BEA 4E
SEHS EL BB B M AT REA B 3K
BB e AR o

B KR e A BROK ST - BRR B e A
TAN Michael Gonzales J¢2E ~ 5% & B Jo & K&
ENESGAE B W K P B KEREY
¥WE R AP REA G &
E# FR -

MRESEG IR Ll ARz EEE
A B2 T RE B 5L R % 5 O w2 S AR
PR TR A5 B R S A A L SE S -

AR KA R b 2 HE A

B b 8 T A B 5 D B
B JFL IR 2 5530 8051 A 24 7 s 3L AF T Y g
8RR AR 48 AR i B RT 2 K B A
A T 6 D 2
f i -

g Z IR B A

Jfe A7 B S T JiE e SR AR K B b SR AT
B RN R B AT T M A R T
SEAT AT S AT A — A 1 B A 4 A Ik T 2R
P I 1 R 2 B A BR AN) 2 RS 5 4 -

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors of the Company are considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. TAN Lucio Jr.
Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming and Mr.
PASCUAL Ramon Sy held interests and/or directorship in companies
engaged in the businesses of property investment and development in
Hong Kong and/or the mainland China.

As the Board of Directors is independent from the boards of the
said companies, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such

companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in continuing connected transactions below and
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no contract of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had material interests,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 29 January 2013, Dynamic Management Services Limited
(“DMSL”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) in
respect of the office premise of the Group in Hong Kong situated at
17th Floor, Eton Tower, 8 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
(the “Premises”) with First Touch Holdings Limited (“First Touch”),
indirectly owned as to more than 50% in aggregate by certain Directors
and a substantial shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to the Tenancy
Agreement, the Premises were rented at HK$168,428 per month
payable in advance, exclusive of government rates, management fee
and air-conditioning charges, and all other outgoings for a term of two
years from 19 December 2012 to 18 December 2014 with one-month
rent-free period at the end of the term. These constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules and
details of the above transactions are disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 29 January 2013.

Based on the monthly rent payable by DMSL to First Touch under the
Tenancy Agreement, the Directors expect that the total annual rent
payable by DMSL to First Touch under the Tenancy Agreement did
not exceed the maximum cap of HK$1,100,000, HK$2,100,000 and
HK$1,000,000 for each of the three financial years ended 30 June
2015.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company upon normal commercial terms and in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2015, so far as is known to any Director or chief
executive(s) of the Company, persons (other than the Directors or
the chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

e
WA R
UL g
(% 4)

Number of

L b
BRAY  CRIRAR
(%)

ARLAY
issued ordinary Total interests
Shares and as approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital
(Wit )
(note 5)

underlying
Shares
(ong position)

Total interests

Capacity (long position)

Dynamic Development Dynamic Development 82 DN
Corporation Corporation
Carnation Investments Inc. ~ Carnation Investments Inc. LN v
AN
BCA Dr. TAN Lucio C. MARHERZ
B A
ﬁ ﬁJﬁ % ﬁ }\ (Hit=)
FIENEL )
TAN Carmen K. % 1: Mrs. TAN Carmen K. FIEMEL 52
NS
BRWEE Mr. CHUA Domingo AR )
LN

Beneficial owner

Trustee of a private
discretionary trust e )

Founder of a private
discretionary trust

Beneficial owner gy

Family interests gy

Family interests g3
Beneficial owner e 3

Corporate interests o 4
Beneficial owner o ¢

89,321,279

89,321,279

89,321,279

2,190,000
2,190,000

91,511,279
2,190,000

89,321,279
5,800,000

89,321,279

89,321,279

93,701,279

93,701,279

95,121,279

40.71%

40.71%

42.71%

42.71%

4335%
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MaE : Notes:
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Carnation Investments Inc. LA fA N 2 H 5 56 2 5 56 A
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¥ % 47 Dynamic Development Corporation ° %% % ] 5
4 J5 Carnation Investments Inc. M — i 38 [ # 5 o 4%
BWY e A i R A 1,800,000 JBE AR B B 03 1 i A HE
% o
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Carnation Investments Inc. was taken to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares in the
Company as the entire issued share capital of Dynamic Development Corporation
was held by Carnation Investments Inc. as trustee for a private discretionary trust.

Dr. TAN Lucio C. beneficially held 2,190,000 underlying Shares as derivative
interests. Dr. TAN, being the spouse of Mrs. TAN Carmen K. who was interested
in 2,190,000 underlying Shares as derivative interests, was deemed or taken to be
interested in such Shares as family interests in which Mrs. TAN Carmen K. was
interested under the SFO.

Mrs. TAN Carmen K. beneficially held 2,190,000 underlying Shares as derivative
interests. Mrs. TAN, being the spouse of Dr. TAN Lucio C. who was interested
in 89,321,279 Shares of the Company as a founder of a private discretionary trust
and 2,190,000 underlying Shares as derivative interests, was deemed or taken to
be interested in such Shares as family interests in which Dr. TAN Lucio C. was
interested under the SFO.

The corporate interests of Mr. CHUA Domingo were held through Dynamic
Development Corporation. Dynamic Development Corporation is wholly-owned
by Carnation Investments Inc. Mr. CHUA Domingo is the sole shareholder and
director of Carnation Investments Inc. Mr. CHUA Domingo beneficially held
1,800,000 underlying Shares as derivative interests.

The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 219,403,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2015.

The references to 89,321,279 Shares in the Company in which Dr. TAN Lucio C.,
Mrs. TAN Carmen K., Mr. CHUA Domingo, Dynamic Development Corporation
and Carnation Investments Inc. were interested or taken to be interested relate to
the same block of Shares.

B LSRR # 4> R B —HAENH =
T+ H > AR B A R AT T AN (AR A
] 3 o A = AT LN B BRAN) A RO B A
B 0 AT ] RE 25 sk0R A > L we R R K
5 33605 28 W A AF 2 B e it A o

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, no other person (other
than the Directors and the chief executive(s) of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

At 30 June 2015, the Group had below 80 employees in Hong Kong
and the mainland China at prevailing market remuneration with
employee benefits such as medical insurance, provident fund schemes

and share option schemes.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is recommended
by the remuneration committee of the Company on the basis of
the respective merits, responsibilities and duties, performance,
qualifications and competence taking into account of comparable
market level, operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives of the Board of Directors and relevant legal requirements,

provisions, guidelines and recommendations of regularly bodies.

The emoluments of the respective Directors of the Company are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company, having
regard to the operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives, individual performance and responsibility and comparable

market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the schemes are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers in aggregate was less than 23% of
the total turnover of the Group and the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate was less
than 54% of the total cost of sales of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June
2015 with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules save for the derivation as disclosed in the “Corporate
Governance Report”. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 115 to 128.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 September 2015
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By - BERSSEENT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

BB SEESOH 35/F One Pacific Place
KBS — 3512 88 Queensway
Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 110, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2015, and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 September 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ao PR A B At i WA i A

BREZZ-FAENAZTHIREE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

s —F—hip —E 4
NOTES 2015 2014
0 T 8 0
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
CEX Turnover 7 103,437 106,215
A Direct costs (20,981) (24,327)
EH| Gross profit 82,456 81,888
Ho A e A Other income 8 23,648 23,333
TEY) N EZ B Increase in fair value of investment
properties 16 57,224 56,171
T Administrative expenses (23,682) (26,514)
S 8 2 H Selling expenses 479) (1,227)
Pl A Finance costs 9 (4,791) (4,525)
GBS EZ R Share of loss of a joint venture (12,020) (9,814)
o A5 i i A Profit before taxation 10 122,356 119,312
i TH Taxation 12 (18,891) (22,811)
2N A JE i ) Profit for the year 103,465 96,501
A AT i A 4 T A Other comprehensive income

for the year

BEGAY I & P E Item that will not be reclassified

A HA - subsequently to profit or loss:
o 25 1 W 2 B Exchange differences on translation
=7 to presentation currency 13,092 6,383
A AF FE A T A HE R Total comprehensive income
for the year 116,557 102,884
A A g A EAS - Profit for the year attributable to:
/NSRS N Owners of the Company 101,586 94,972
IF e R 2 Non-controlling interest 1,879 1,529
103,465 96,501
AR A T A Total comprehensive income
AL attributable to:
ENY/NEEIE7 2SN Owners of the Company 114,451 101,269
I 72 I HE 2 Non-controlling interest 2,106 1,615
116,557 102,384
T e B A (EE ) Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) 14
HAR Basic 46.3 433

i v Diluted 43.5 40.9
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ERERR YIS

REZ—HENA=TR
At 30 June 2015

e = e =L
NOTES 2015 2014
T

#WT T

i Bh ¥E e
ERN S Y& L]
BEY
HEA LR

SELERK

i By ¥
HEW=R
e JIEEN
2 5 B HL At B i B K
I 2 5 IS AR R K

SRAT HE A7 5K
ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%
17 f B M Bl

i By £ 4%

2 5 B H At A R 3K
A B IR
AT K —

IR —AF N E R

i 3y e VA
BE e A8 0 UL ) £ 45

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Interest in a joint venture
Amount due from a joint venture

Current Assets

Properties held for sale

Loan receivables

Trade and other receivables

Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder

Pledged bank deposits

Fixed bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Tax payable
Bank loans —

due within one year

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

15
16
17
17

18
19
20

20
29

20
20

21

22

HK$’000

HK$°000

2,012 1,979
2,000,101 1,930,079
94,467 76,235
239,924 252,355
2,336,504 2,260,648
17,440 17,315
14,815 12,349
970 964

7,488 25,581
167,844 81,085
84,985 142,676
293,542 279,970
62,206 62,723
102,231 100,994
7,600 7,618
172,037 171,335
121,505 108,635
2,458,009 2,369,283




36 SE-NEE AR | R EEARA A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

ER A BB IR LR (4)
R HAEAA= TR
At 30 June 2015

- S %
2015

#W T
HK$°000

TR P 4E
2014

Vo o

HK$’000

AR B ks fii Capital and Reserves
AR Share capital 23 219,404 219,404
ot Reserves 1,755,390 1,651,909
LNAE PN Y Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 1,974,794 1,871,313
I P It BE 22 Non-controlling interest 36,572 34,466
BUBE 2R Total Equity 2,011,366 1,905,779
FE VR B £1 4% Non-current Liabilities
SRITHE I — Bank loans —
TN — R R due after one year 22 164,592 191,192
R S R TE B (R Deferred tax liabilities 24 282,051 272,312
446,643 463,504
2,458,009 2,369,283

HREMENOEZ A MBREL R =%  The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 110 were
—HENLA T+ HH B EHFGHA A LM approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
FIED > Sl NI FARREE - September 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

#HFE #HHE TAN Harry Chua CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Bk i Bk A DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Ar B LR S ) %

BREZZ-FAENAZTHIREE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

LYEE EIN 4]
Attributable to owners of the Company
ey 1] R K

RA - BB MG bl EARE Bl JCmBE Bl REEN At T4
Capital Share Non-

Share Share Special  redemption  Translation option Other  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest

HKS'000

REZ-ZEEA-H Atlhly2013 219,404 426,759 55018 1,644 375422 8,100 92451 6,280 595936 1,781,014 0851 1,813,865
REFRT Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 94972 94972 1529 96,501
(L PE Ch Exchange differences arising

on translation - - - - 6,97 - - - - 6,297 86 6,383

EEELHRALR Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 6,297 - - - 09T 101269 1615 10288
L1 Transfer = = = = = = = 968 (968) - - -
BAME (W2HIE)  Cashdividends frore 13 - - - - - - - - (logn)  (10.970) - (logm)
BEF-IERAZTH A0 June 2014 44 46759 55,018 164 38179 8,100 92451 U8 GO0 18T 34466 1905719
REEER Profit for the year = = = = = = = - 101586 101,386 1879 103465
BHEEZHEEE  Exchange differences arising

on trnslation - - = - 12865 - - - - 12,865 m 13,09

AEEATRASE Total comprehensive income

for the year = = = = 12865 = = S5 144l 206 116557
fo Transfer - - - - - - - 1,039 (1,039) - - -
BARE (W7 45%)  Cashdividends (note 13) = = = = = - = - (10970)  (10.970) - (l0970)
REZ-HERAZTH A0 June 2015 WA 46759 55,018 1644 304584 8,100 9241 587 TE8ST 1947 W57 2011366

MtaE - Notes:

(R AR [ 2 05 I o 5 T A ) S i 48 [ o0 4 BT i I 2 (a) The special reserve of the Group arose from the difference between the aggregate

P Jag 2 ) B 2 A~ By A — R A S AR amount of the then share capital, share premium, general reserve and retained
B Yk R 22 48 (R B AR N ) i i S S E BT B AT 2 M profits of the subsidiaries acquired, and the nominal amount of the Company’s
T (L [H] 2 2 L PE A o shares issued for the acquisition in relation to a previous group reorganisation.

() AEEZ AL TIBAER B AL a4 R A (b) The other reserve of the Group represents deemed contributions from equity

ANzt h8E _FENESNH=ETHIEERE holders of the Company which arose from the difference between the fair value
A BB AT B JRE A A AR 2 N 1B (R B 325 o i B PR of consideration paid and payable and the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
J& N T T U 2 T S kR R E - AR R B liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired through acquisition of the subsidiaries
ZFATEMEMZ R EAL - during the year ended 30 June 2006.

(T9) 5 B vk ) el 3% 2 3 o b Al 2 0 8 1 S AR 2 W) (©) The statutory reserve transferred from retained profits are required by relevant
e AR A B (T o i) |) A B RS 2 ] 22 e AR B People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) laws and regulations applicable to the
B RERLTRLE - Company’s PRC subsidiary.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
OB EE
Forthe o e 0 dune 1S

e el K 3 ZF A
2015 2014
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
REBEG OPERATING ACTIVITIES
I L i i A Profit before taxation 122,356 119,312
A Adjustments for:
FLE M A Interest income (21,410) (18,765)
OB W) 2N E Increase in fair value of investment properties (57,224) (56,171)
PreE Depreciation 161 150
e M - WX Loss on disposal/written off of property,
%A e 48 plant and equipment 5 15
JREE Wi W 3 R 2 Bk Impairment loss recognised in respect of
i 8 receivables 153 21
il B A Finance costs 4,791 4,525
G AR 1R Share of loss of a joint venture 12,020 9,814
I 58 B 2 B 50 iC 25 Unrealised exchange gain (1,053) (964)
BB EEEH L Operating cash flows before movements
FEY ST Sh s in working capital 59,799 57,937
Ry WD Decrease in properties held for sale - 2,268
B 5 K A BEU IR 3K 3% I Increase in trade and other receivables (2,522) (92)
B 5 K oA BE AR 2K (3 2>)  (Decrease) increase in trade and other
4 payables (883) 303
B i T B e & D Decrease in pre-sale deposits received - (4,012)
KRB &2 4& Cash generated from operations 56,394 56,404
B A P B BT A5 B R PRC Income Tax paid (10,338) (12,015)
E AT v Bl (E B PRC Land Appreciation Tax paid - (4,915)
KHBBEEH 2B 4H%B  NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 46,056 39,474
BEEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
A SRAT 2 W A7 3 Placement of fixed bank deposits (125,701) (59,103)
INEYE - B R Purchase of property, plant and equipment (186) (88)
AR [ $RAT 2 A7 AR Withdrawal of fixed bank deposits 39,798 5,127
A8 [\ SR AT SR AT A7 3K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 18,260 2,313
B i A B Interest received 5,838 4,107
B R B SRR IR K Loan receivables repaid - 126
A SRAT HEA A7 3K Placement of pledged bank deposits - (3,809)
KAREHEIH 2B 4HH  NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (61,991) (51,327)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
A Bl ERER )

BREZZ-TAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

e 2 Y —E U4
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
I ) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
4R SRAT B GKIE Repayment of bank loans (27,000) (206,250)
B B Dividends paid (10,970) (10,970)
g4t LS Interest paid (4,448) (3,983)
SR AT A New bank loans raised - 198,800
MRS B 23458 NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (42,418) (22,403)
BReERB4E%SMHWMAHS  NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (58,353) (34,256)
AEW) 2 B4 K B 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 142,676 175,980
A BE 58 46 3 5 B 25U EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGE 662 952
AR BLA BB CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
DVERAT 45 8 T B & F]OR represented by bank balances and cash 84,985 142,676
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok o U 20 B JE i

BEZ-HAEANAZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

HBE 2t

Ay w) DY AE T RS B AR A RO 2 52 R
AR A H By e 7 i k5 52 5 B
AR A (BB ]) £ LTl - AR
SIS -9\ &L 35 Ik 2l
AERP AR RBEEER]A -

AR - HBEEERAR  HE=
Wi I 2 ] 2 S I W SE A R B

AAFRZ B W ANRY - ARF
T g b i B W RR R A R

BZRBIEN > WA BRI L
w25 -

W B W B A6 Y 7 8 I B
S (7 o I 5 o e ) )

AR > AEECER T i Al
B g (17 % ol b 2 6 ) A
A 7 s 0 i e R 2 BT A K — A
WAl ek

T il S Ak i T il s Ak i
(AT ) ZE-%%
ZE-ZEENZ
RN E
it S A i B it M e
(BT ) ZF——F
SRR
N E

EMHERE RS 05 RERR
Tl S o T A 12

T it M A
H27 (BRI A)
Fib g s 1998 TR
(AT A) 1 B fitzx
ik a5 3058 KHEMER R
(AT A) SRR
i a5 3648 FeMERZ
(55T 4) [ 4 4 5%
i Gt 53958 it TR ERR
(55T &) Bibarihik 2z B8
His (ABHERERE  HE

ZAE) -@BHAR

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate and Investors Information” in the
annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are property investment
and development.

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars as the Directors of the Company consider that Hong
Kong dollar is the most appropriate presentation currency in
view of its place of listing.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Company has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs and a new interpretation issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

Amendments to HKAS 39
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22 /N =02y
#3 A B B MR TE B e
BREZZ-TAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2. HERSH T R AT A A B W
o i B ([ 7 9 0 5 o e S0 1)

.
(#5)

T A AR E R DL A o B S i 2 T
(ERTA) B w ade B 38) A% 46 1) A 46 2
Fo o 1 4F B 09 B B 3 B BOIR WL 2
5% 5 K B MR TE BT B R AR
HABE -

7 45 T 0 M 4R BB T 5 2 A L 1
A AT R KA BT A B R
A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs and the
new interpretation in the current year has had no material effect
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative!

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements!

B aHEAE 5 WFEsH

(BT %)

Fifs &t 2758 BIMEHE
(B7T%) g

RGeS RESE  WEREHTHET
G385 (BT A) LB

B aHEAS 6 RES  RE AENEY
AR5 (BTA)

T s AR A 5811 Yt A A
(BT bR

BBHEREENEI0%L  REERLHEAA
FW G 5089 HABATZHL
(BT %) EEBERHA

BBMHREEAS 08 BREEH EAKS
FUMBEREEAE SR Z0MER
BT 85

(BT %)

s B AR T ) T I B e )
(BT %) —F-CF%

SRR
EEYE

T i B 4R A 1 2 0 ST A

Bl BB ot 26 1458 EERIEREA

BV BT b R ) 261598 KR AH 2

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer Plants !

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!

Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
20122014 Cycle!

Financial Instruments*

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

I R E—NE— A — BRI 2
SR AL o

2 RoE—RNFE—H -2 & MR 2 E 5
A2 7 o o T S o v B B B AR T AR

3 RoF—LE—A - ARZEMIRZFE
SRR o

J R FE— NE— A — Bl B IR 2 A
SR AL o

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
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f v B B AR T MR ()
BREZZ-TAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

W I B 486 Y A 98 B
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0 5 ISR T R A R 2
W 28|

B F—AEE A IR R
RIS 1558 2 A8 - Hol € — T B —
2EEAMERAERAES L
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RUPER 15 BR 2R 20AR - HLI HOAC B I 2 i
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ERZAE RS - 2 ER5IA
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T A A 8 Ak 2 A B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods
and services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step

approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

» Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

» Step 3: Determine the transaction price

» Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

» Step5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies

a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, that is when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The Directors of the Company are in the process of ascertaining
the financial effect of the application of HKFRS 15 on the
Group’s financial performance and positions.

Other than as described above, the Directors anticipate that
the application of these new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ok B S 5 MR T P ()

o N |

BREZZ-TAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015
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A SRR MBIRHECEEFER S
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or service.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

43
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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BREZZ-TAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the
Group’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in that joint venture, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for
sale.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that
are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as income in the period in which they are earned.

In the event that lease incentives are granted to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as assets. The
aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental income on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are diminished.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

47



48

SE-NECF-EEEER |

2 ) 4 AT PR A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ok B S 5 MR T P ()

WO

RE

F—IHAENA =T HILEE

For the year ended 30 June 2015

FE Ak R a)

AT - 3 B B 5*

M AL+ b A R4 > Rl AR 4R
AR R A A o R TR 2
A HE BT B A 2 48 K 4 Ja B K [
A BT AL E A > B A
B R B M R
FrRIEMI o HELRERE > F%lF
UL BB TE AR B R S R
B HMWMS » mKHEKE (FT
i — Y AR TR A BROIE) TG H L S A
T At = 3 43 7 AR BR 4R e 2 P E 4
AH 3 A B e B b S AR Ay 2
4 AL

i HE AT 5% 7> BL AR B Ak H > AR 8 AR
BA MR A B 45 R AR A R
WK N R T AT B OH |3 4% E
Bk T R v o B R IO AR
T BB W 3 B DA 1 (8 551 B B B
S o T B RRIE R AR - S M
gy 2 TR AT 58 O WO BRE > R AR — k)
KR TR B AE W E MR IR
AN -

i £ A

L BENRAEEREREE (RE
e G EE 15 T B — B R W O RE 1E B
EMESHENEE) BRARZE
BRAFTAZEEREZNAE > HEZ
LEEDRBERCHERME L
1E o R £ S R S B
WG ERES SR EEMN
ME > GREERERLZEERAE
B o

P A At £ 5 A 24 % 7 AR 401 ] 9 4R
i 1 AR o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of a lease including both
land and building elements as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises the property interest in
leasehold land and development costs including attributable
borrowing costs capitalised.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make

the sale.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from the “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items

carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the group entity with
functional currency of Renminbi are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interest as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits plans in
Hong Kong and the PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables. Loans
and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including amount due from a joint venture, loan receivables,
trade and other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder, bank deposits and bank balances) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loan receivables and trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amounts are reduced through the use of
allowance accounts. Changes in the carrying amounts of the
allowance accounts are recognised in profit or loss. When loan
receivables and trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
accounts. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and

bank loans) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using

the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of
obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the revenue recognition policy.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the following conditions

are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties, which
is when the construction of relevant properties has been
completed, upon delivery, and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the properties are

sold;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group; and
. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to
meeting all the above criteria for revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position

under current liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Others

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the period in
which they are earned.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for

which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash — generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Contingent asset

A contingent asset is not recognised until the realisation
of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not
contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and consultants providing

similar services

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted and vested at the grant
date is expensed as share-based payment expenses immediately
on the date of grant, with a corresponding increase in share

option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred

to retained profits.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting

policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a
result, the Group has recognised the deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of investment properties as the Group is subject to
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT”) on disposal of its investment properties.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)

Classification of Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises
Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”) as a joint venture

The operation period of Zhen Wah, joint venture of the Group,
expired on 16 January 2014. The Directors assessed the
classification and accounting treatment of Zhen Wah based on
the legal advice received. Based on PRC laws and regulations
and the related interpretations by an external PRC legal counsel
engaged by the Group, after the expiry of the operation period,
the legal identity of Zhen Wah still exists and the net assets
of Zhen Wah will be distributed to the joint venture partners
based on their equity contributions shareholding after the
completion of the winding up. All the decisions making of the
voluntary winding up process require the unanimous consent
of both joint venture partners. Accordingly, the Directors of the
Company continue to account for Zhen Wah as a joint venture
of the Group using the equity method of accounting in these
consolidated financial statements. See note 17 for details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group recognises allowance for doubtful debts based on an
assessment of the recoverability of loan receivables and trade
and other receivables.

Allowances are applied to loan receivables and trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the actual cash flows relating to loan receivables and
trade and other receivables are different from the previous
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of loan
receivables, trade and other receivables and the doubtful debts
expense. As at 30 June 2015, the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables and loan receivables are HK$14,815,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$4,027,000) (2014:
HKS$12,349,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$3,947,000)) and nil (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$1,807,000) (2014: nil (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$1,796,000)) respectively.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Recoverability of interest in a joint venture and amount due
from a joint venture

The Directors of the Company have assessed the recoverability
of interest in a joint venture and amount due from a joint
venture amounting to HK$94,467,000 and HK$239,924,000
respectively as at 30 June 2015 (2014: HK$76,235,000 and
HK$252,355,000). The Directors of the Company have reviewed
the latest financial positions of Zhen Wah and concluded that
the amounts will be fully recoverable.

Provision for LAT and EIT

The provision for LAT and EIT is based upon the management’s
estimate of the deductibility of the costs incurred for the
development and sales of the subject properties where the actual
deductibility relating to the costs incurred are different from the
amount estimated, such difference will result in an over/under
provision in the carrying amounts of tax payables and taxation

charge for the year.
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6. ZWITH

(W) 4k T H BN

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans as disclosed in note 22, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the Directors of the Company
review annual budgets taking into account the provision of
funding. Based on the operating budgets, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital and balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

- S T —F— P
2015 2014
W T T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
Al A Financial assets
DL B8 AR FHE 2 K Loans and receivables at
T M U HR AR (B 6 B 4 amortised cost (including cash
e B4 S5 {H) and cash equivalents) 505,906 511,249
A 3R Financial liabilities
DL B LA 5HE 2 Bl Liabilities at amortised cost 207,156 235,008

(&) 4xridh B8 45 BE H B2 B BoR

AGEBzEE M T RAES
B ER R - BHEUOR - "
Sy Be FC A R WSO K~ 48 BB R
K~ AT B -~ B &
At JE A SR BRI BRAT B K o % 5F
& Al TR 2 R A B R
AEA

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount
due from a joint venture, loan receivables, trade and
other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder, bank deposits and balances, trade and other
payables and bank loans. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
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PU4E : i #5248.909,0007C) ©
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Management monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the Group through internal risk assessment
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of
risks.

These financial risks include market risk (including
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks from the prior year.

(i)  Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rates and
changes in foreign exchange rate.

Interest rate risk analysis

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable-rate bank loans and
bank deposits and balances amounting to
HK$172,192,000 (2014: HK$198,810,000) and
HK$260,105,000 (2014: HK$248,909,000),
respectively. The interest rate risk of bank deposits
and bank balances are considered insignificant
as the bank deposits are substantially short-term
deposits and fluctuation in interest rate of bank
balances is limited. The variable-rate bank loans
with original maturity instalments range from one
to three years. An increase in interest rates would
increase interest expenses. The Group currently
does not have interest rate hedging policy, however,
management monitors interest rate exposure on
dynamic basis and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for non-derivative instruments, excluding bank
deposits and balances, at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate bank loans, the analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis points
(2014: 100 basis points) increase or a 25 basis
points (2014: 25 basis points) decrease is used
as it represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2014:
100 basis points) higher or 25 basis points (2014:
25 basis points) lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended
30 June 2015 would decrease by HK$1,722,000
(2014: HK$1,988,000) or increase by HK$430,000
(2014: HK$497,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s net exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings.

Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures
to exchange rate fluctuation arise. The Group
currently does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge against its exposure to currency risk. The
management manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

)

Market risk (Continued)

F I b (A Currency risk (Continued)
AL E LA HESH A 2 B The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign
BEhkE¥aB(EEaR currency denominated monetary assets and
SRAT R WA R H R T monetary liabilities (mainly include bank loans) at
B/ N the reporting date are as follows:
—R T4 —R—PU4E
2015 2014
W T T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
<03 Assets
ki1 ) Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”) 1,596 12,768
& ([X4]) United States dollars (“US$”) 9,682 2,333
B ([ Hews]) Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 23 25
18 Liabilities
ki HKS$ 174,035 200,685
S B SRR A BT Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
R B R R A FE The following table indicates the approximate
b M ER 2 A TH A] fE A ) i change in the Group’s profit or loss in response
FOAS 4 8] 19 Jas ) oS 4R K HE to reasonably possible changes in the foreign

SEE o A 4 F TR % S b
Sl 2 FBRERR o

HCRRBE o M 1 A 4 DL AN
RZMARGAKYKEE > I
A4 A R R HL AR B DA
BZS%(ZF— A 5%)
BE o TER(A)EHER
EW S EEMIEE AR
e 3 5 5% I 2 Bl AT s 1
D) R e EW - EER
B N R 5% (=&
— VU4 © 5%) RF > HIl 5 €
% AT B o 1 I A A5 [R] A A
-2

exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% (2014: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A (negative) positive number below indicates a
(decrease) increase in pre-tax profit where HKS,
US$ and GBP strengthens against RMB for 5%.
For a 5% (2014: 5%) weakening of HKS$, US$ and
GBP against RMB, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the pre-tax profit for the year.
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6. ﬁﬁd{ T E— (#%) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(2) BB BLH RS R BR (4F) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
@ W HE B () (i)  Market risk (Continued)
S 8 1R A T (A Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)
3 B8 i ik ) o AL Y B
Effect on pre-tax profit or loss
e S X 2 —F -4
2015 2014
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
bakic HKS$ (8,622) (9,396)
xE Uss 484 117
o % GBP 1 1
Gi) A5 BB (i) ~ Credit risk
W oFE—AFEANHA=ZTH> As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s maximum
AL FZE 5 I KRB AT I exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
AT B A 42 T 4 4t B 25 9 R T loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
5| BB TS s 1R 1Y B K {7 R obligation by the counterparties and financial
g IS guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:
. WA MR ER . the carrying amount of the respective
BT B RR AR B & il recognised financial assets as stated in the
K ARWAE ; & consolidated statement of financial position;
and
0 T B FE 5526 JH TN BT 4% . the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
EAEBAEE M to financial guarantees issued by the Group as
W5 4 IR 2 AR AR disclosed in note 26.
AT FERRE SRR A In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
LHEMEBCZMENAAE of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
R AR [ determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
B A K At B 5 AR T A BB other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
o DU R BR TRCRR AHE 15 e i up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
T i e (7 S 0 N N addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
B 5 8 S A R A g 1 of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
& TH 2 AT Y 5] ZR8R D £ period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
Wt HE VR B 2 BB AE R are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
W) 2 WA N R A o A the Directors of the Company consider that the
FoANAERRAALEME Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

(ERSN AR B
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

(iit)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies or
state-owned banks in the PRC.

With respect to the amounts due from a joint
venture and a non-controlling shareholder, having
considered their financial standings, the Directors
of the Company are of the view that the credit risk is
limited.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is in the PRC. Other than
concentration of credit risk on liquid funds and by
geographical location, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spreading across diverse counterparties.

The Group has provided guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the
properties for an amount up to 70% of the purchase
price of the individual property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage loan
during the period of guarantee, the bank holding
the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding loan and any interest accrued thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group is able
to resell the repossessed properties. Therefore,
management considers it would recover any
loss incurred arising from the guarantee to the
customers.

Liquidity risk

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest period on which the Group can
be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from the
weighted average interest rate by reference to the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (the “HIBOR”)
of the Group’s variable-rate financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period.
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Weighted
average
interest rate

2015

Trade and other payables -
Bank loans - variable rate* 231
Financial guarantee contracts -

B3

il

Weighted
average
interest rate

2014

Trade and other payables -
Bank loans - variable rate* 231
Financial guarantee contracts =

* A LB BB RS
T AE S 25 R S AR 3R B T
¥y R 2 PR OB o £2.08%
(=% — U4 [ 47 5
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

HERBR
B

= il
On

demand or
less than

1 month
#YFr
HKS$000

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014 and 2015, the Group does not
have term loan with repayment on demand clause.
The maturity dates for bank borrowings and other
non-derivative financial liabilities is prepared based
on the scheduled repayment dates.

Liquidity risk tables

3

e S %

=MA ¥ AW3RE AA=1H
-4 Fhf  WEME  mERM

Total Carrying

3 months undiscounted  amount at
to 1 year 1-2 years 2Syears  cashflows  30.6.2015
#WTL  EETL  #NTL  #NTL  #FTE
HKS’000 HEKS$'000  HK$'000 HEKS'000  HKS'000

7,683 1,351 25,930 - - 34964 34,964

EXK 2,661 8913 168420 S [ K YA /A1)
13313 - - - - 13313 -
21329 4012 M 168420 S M8EM 207,156

RERIF
Hi
—fiA

On

demand or
less than

1 month
BEFT
HKS$'000

-3
=MA

13
months
BIFI
HKS$'000

Carrying

3 months undiscounted amount at
to | year 1-2 years 2Syears  cashflows  30.6.2014
BBEFT . BFTT BT BFTT
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$'000

13,220 2,755 20,223 - - 36,198 36,198

385 2,765 9,380 12,345 187,822 212,697 198,810

20,600 = = = = 20,600 =

34205 5,520 29,603 12,345 187,822 269,495 235,008
b For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, weighted

average interest rate represents the weighted average of
HIBOR plus 2.08% (2014: HIBOR plus 2.08%).
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(0

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their corresponding fair values.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of Directors (the “Board”) of
the Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance
focused on the location of the properties for property rental and

property sales.

The property rental segment includes property leasing operation
in the PRC. The Group’s investment properties portfolio, which
mainly consists of offices, shopping mall and carparks, are
located in Shanghai and Beijing. The property sales segment
includes sales of the Group’s trading properties in Beijing.

These divisions, property rental and property sales analysed
based on distinct geographical locations, are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information under HKFRS 8
“Operating Segments”.

(a) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

AR R AT results by reportable and operating segment for the year:
BT B
Property rental Property sales
L 73 ]
Shanghai Beijing Consolidated
g5 “2-NE - “3-NE -5 _2-NF -5 _2-NE
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
EWTL  EHTr #WTL ERETT #WFL EFTL EWFL ENTL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$’000  HKS$'000
vz LI SEGMENT REVENUE
BXH TURNOVER
BiHE Extenal sales 3638 35216 67051 61,646 - 9353 103437 106215
ML SEGMENT RESULT 4,119 36618 95372 92920 (158) 7003 13953 136641
FAREAMIA  Unallocated other income 0216 21614
RABARZE  Unallocated corporate expenses (2,58 (24604)
ES- (%3 Finance costs @m0 (4525)
AELEZER Share of loss of a joint
UK venture (12,020) (9814)
VR 5L i A Profit before taxation m3s6 11931
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7. BEBERMBER ) 7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
() 2%k ds B B4 (4F) (a) Segment revenues and results (Continued)

K8y B2 & Rl BORE B B SR
563 JE Tt A 48 M B9 & s BOR A
6] o 73 8 3 B384 0 B 2t Al
(s 18) > T 3z 28 73 B R 47 BUK
A RATHBA - HEAEX
R BEHFIE A~ B R K
CR-SEPaS Vi RN LY IV
Pic B U % T Al R B S 2
Z R EHEA]

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment result represents the profit (loss) from each
segment without the allocation of central administration
costs, bank interest income, imputed interest income on
amount due from a joint venture, finance costs and share
of result of a joint venture. This is the measure reported
to the Board of Directors for the purposes of resources

allocation and performance assessment.

() BERENRAE (b) Segment assets and liabilities
BN WEHE
Property rental Property sales
%3 L E%:3 By
Beijing Shanghai Beijing Consolidated
ZR-N ZZ-NE -6 RN 6% ZZ-NE 226 ZZ-IE
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
BH¥TL  BEFL BETL EEFL BETA BETL BETL EFTI
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
{A ASSETS
PEERE Segment assets 05822 685213 1302217 1252398 23,948 2981 2031987 1959592
BELEHER Terest in a joint venture 94467 76235
AEEERH Amount due from a joint venture 239,924 252,355
FARAELE Unallocated corporate assets 263,668 250436
GRERAE Consolidated total assets 263046 2540618
il LIABILITIES
HEAE Segment liabilities 5950 6,44 31279 30614 14581 15873 51,810 52,731
RAEAEARE  Unallocated corporate liabilities 566870 582,108
GRARAE Consolidated total liabilities 018,680 634839
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7. BRBERIBER @) 7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(&) 73t KB () (b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
B EEPER R B MR B R B R For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
I3 and allocating resources between segments:
— KEELERERD  AEME = all assets are allocated to operating segments other
R~ RATAER ~ RATH R than interest in a joint venture, amount due from
Je B4 DA B HoAth A 26 F = a joint venture, bank deposits, bank balances and
Hh o AT RE T4 L By R cash and other corporate assets; and
Vi S
— BRI S R H A AT A — all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
R — R A BBk~ 7] 2 3RIA other than amount due to a related company
JEATBLIE - $RAT R - AR AT included in trade and other payables, tax payable,
Bl T A AR K A A 3 A E bank loans, deferred tax liabilities and other
Ah o A EBE AR TS Bl 4 R corporate liabilities.
I o
(W) HAbn 3R (¢) Other segment information

B 1 VES 1

Property rental Property sales
£ L £ G AR il

Beijing Shanghai Beijing Segment Total Unallocated Consolidated

“&-1k ST %1% CRWE %5 SN C%-6F CT-RF CR-3F CRmE
015 2 18 : 015 214 015 14 215 014 015

BYFE  ENTr BT ENFT #FTR ENFT BWFLD WL . #FTE EEFT
HESOO  HKSOO0  HESUOO HKSO HKSUM)  HESWN  HKSOO)  HESU0  HK S0 HKS 000

GEEEAE Amountsincluded nthe
EHIMEEER  measure of segment reslt
AELEH or segment assets and

liabilities
LS Capital expendiures - - - - 1 i il bij 165 l 186 8
ik Depreciation - - - - bl 13 1 134 4 16 161 150

HEBREAS  Impaiment loss recognised

WlEEERD (teversed) in respectof

(BE) F8 Teceivables, net - - 15 % - (%) 15 2 - = 15 2
RENEATHEZ  Increase n fair value of

s investment properties 16,801 13,254 40423 2917 - - T4 56,171 - - 51U 36,171
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7. BEBENBER @)

(1) MR

AL BB ANE R
IR B (s R AL -

e E A iR 2 b IS A BT E B

EMRmEEM T :

(RS

AGE M b R R E A S
B &M THRETH

THEE (WA) o
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(d) Geographical information

All of the Group’s turnover from external customers are
located in the PRC (other than Hong Kong).

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of

non-current assets analysed by the geographical area in

which the assets are located:

PRC (other than Hong Kong)

Ui Bh ¢ e R e

Carrying amount of

non-current assets

—E-hAE
2015

#W T
HKS$°000

2,001,865

CE YA
2014
T or
HKS$000

1,931,931

assets, if any.

The Group’s non-current assets above exclude interest
in a joint venture, financial instruments and deferred tax

() B ALEFEMmEE — X FIEHE A (e)  The Group does not have major customers as no single

42 5B AR 10% 1 2 LA > iOIE 4
FEEF o
8. HAbWcA

FoAb g A 45 -

AT FLE A

S AR i AR

LAt B i B K 2 MR
B WA
bR K B
FE A

turnover.

8. OTHER INCOME

Included in other income are:

Bank interest income

Exchange gain, net

Imputed interest income on other
receivables

Imputed interest income on amount due
from a joint venture

“E T
2015

W T
HKS$°000

5,838
411

15,563

customer contributes more than 10% of the Group’s

e S uikis
2014
BT o
HK$’000

4,107
646

14,651
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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BREZ-HAENAZTHIEEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

9. MW¥EWA 9. FINANCE COSTS
e S X 2 —E UL
2015 2014
BT B W T T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
RN HAE N R BE IR 2 Interest on bank borrowings wholly

SRAT 15 B B repayable within five years 4,791 4,525

10. B BE 1l e A 10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

e S X — 0 4E
2015 2014

T i T oo
HK$°000 HKS$°000

o Bt 1 v A 240 BR (FEA) Profit before taxation has been arrived
T4 £ 8 : at after charging (crediting):

JRE AT P (B R P fERB 13 4H Impairment loss recognised in respect

of receivables, net 153 21
A2 S5 I T Auditor’s remuneration 1,491 1,452
g Depreciation 161 150
e S - X Loss on disposal/written off of property,
A s 1 plant and equipment 5 15
7 B R Ry S Cost of inventories recognised
as expense - 2,268
W E 2 RafEH S Operating lease rentals in respect of
office premises 2,507 2,460
BILMA (BIE 25| AH5E  Staff costs (including Directors’
B () THZ & &) remuneration shown in note 11(a)) 12,310 14,161
B PG Share of PRC income tax of a joint
BMES#H (COEERSE venture (included in share of loss of
W REE T EEAN) a joint venture) — 89
L e e B i 458 7 FH S A 4 Net operating lease rentals received and
| receivable
BB EMHSE Gross rents from investment
properties (109,216) (103,408)
W BB E A Less: Direct expenses from
B investment properties 20,803 21,867

(88,413) (81,541)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fo 7 B 5 MR T PR R ()
BREZZ-TAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

11. 5 EEAMWE

(W) 3 W&

TR
HAITESF

Bar JFHATHE SR
FoAte B <
(AfTESF)

i 4 S L Ath 48 Al

7B PR AR A 1 3t

EREEY FU O S A
WA %) EE LA E WS

mr

B K B A

Bk A (i —)
Wi 25k

TAN Michael Gonzales /¢ 4
RAERIEE
HIFIEG A

R P
AL (i)
HERlE Ak

SY Robin Chual# £
AL

GO Patrick Lim J& 4

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

—R-hAE
2015

ZE A
2014
T or
HKS$000

#W T
HKS$°000

Directors’ fees

Executive 1,960 2,320
Independent Non-executive 1,200 1,520
Other emoluments
(Executive Directors)
Salaries and other benefits 1,852 1,772
Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme 163 234
5,175 5,846

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve
(2014: twelve) Directors were as follows:

Fak B A
Wwe  JUbEAN wf 3 4k W

Salaries  Contributions

and other  to retirement
Fees benefits benefits scheme Total
#WFr B Fr B Tx BWTx
HKS$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000
Mr. TAN Harry Chua 280 - 14 294
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank (note 1) 240 - 12 252
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 280 - 14 294
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 240 - 12 252
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 200 360 10 570
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 240 - 12 252
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 320 - 16 336
Mr. WONG Sai Tat (note 2) 160 1,492 73 1,725
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 320 - - 320
Dr. SY Robin Chua 280 - - 280
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 320 - - 320
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 280 - - 280
3,160 1,852 163 5,175
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11. #FFKEEBMNE ) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(W) e & () (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Fek o BHREHN
KA FHEfEK

Salaries  Contributions

and other to retirement

Fees benefits  benefits scheme Total
BT T BT BT T BIEF T
HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
B K B e Mr. TAN Harry Chua 320 = 2 342
WA L (i —) Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank (note 1) 240 = 18 258
B 2ok Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 240 = 18 258
TAN Michael Gonzales/z = Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 320 = 20 340
iR WA Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 240 360 18 618
HIFIE 4 Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 280 - 2 302
e Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 400 = 32 432
Ll Mr. WONG Sai Tat 280 1412 84 1,776
AERIH e Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 400 - - 400
SY Robin Chual# 1 Dr. SY Robin Chua 320 - - 320
FE S L Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 400 = = 400
GO Patrick Lim /£ Mr. GO Patrick Lim 400 - - 400
3,840 1,772 234 5,846
Mt - Note:
— - BRI AN RTBAR 1. Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank is also the Chief Executive of the
DA 4% 5 2 38 A A A AT AT B AR Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
Fh P 4 kAR S 1) T services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.
— wWitEsEER - E—-HELAT= 2. Mr. WONG Sai Tat resigned as Director of the Company on 13

HEEAAFES - July 2015.
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fo 7 B 5 MR T PR R ()
BREZZ-TAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

11. EFERBEEME &) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(2) 18 B4 (b)

HEEEHFMALEE 4 (2
FT—FE: —&)EF > H4
FEE EOA B K RESE LR ]
o B FIUAZ (& — P4 : Y

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2014:
one) Director, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 11(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining four
(2014: four) individuals are as follows:

H)NLEZ AR
- S X 0 4E
2015 2014
BT W or
HKS$’000 HK$°000
4 F HohAE A Salaries and other benefits 3,367 3,131
B AR AR A ET Retirement benefits scheme
3K contributions 163 151
3,530 3,282
B2 M8 AN 2 3 B AR A Each individual’s emoluments are less than HK$1,000,000
B b 1 s #1,000,000 G for both years.
12. BLHEH 12. TAXATION
—ZF—hAE ZE U4
2015 2014
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
B TH 3 AL A The tax charge comprises:
B IRF v 2 B 5 Bl Current tax in the PRC
(U BR A1) (other than Hong Kong)
AR AF Current year 10,927 9,846
WA N R GRRAR) el Under (over) provision in prior years 29 421)
10,956 9,425
o B A 4 (B PRC LAT - 3,017
R SE B IE (M 7 75 246 Deferred taxation (note 24) 7,935 10,369

18,891 22,811
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22 /A
A

B 285 M JEL T )

BREZZ—HAENA =1 H R4

For the

12.

year ended 30 June 2015

BLIH (%)

PR A% S T 7 T 4 J5E R MU IR R di
A BOR &5 G B85 BR TE A 3 28 A o B
S BLHE -

MR8 A 2 AR 3L R B A 2 T A5 R Ik
(TEmM B ) MO EFRERILE
S 7 N S I o N ) /AN [l
B R ENFE—H—HLH25% °

AN T HE T W S 0 R L B I ST Y
T Mg A A ZEIMBLA R > A%
o5 B AE B RE R B Al A > BB
A K FLB A 1Y 10% £25% ©

- b 3 (5 0 458 4 A B B BB kR
Te 153490 Bt A0 09 R R AF 4G R o b I
E Bl C 2 R B 2 A (AR BR 58 T
H AT AT 368 B SCAR AR A o

0 S 3 TE B R R B A B E 2524 TH
A o

EFEBIEREEH - FF/E
— A — H > 5k B A 2 T i
[ 5 A R 2B B0 58 5% 00 TE 30 B o it 2
A - B A E AR
A5G WS R IH A R R IR A B IH 2
e #2.815,000 7T ( = & — I 4F ¢ kg
2,280,0007C) °

12.

TAXATION (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable
profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiary is
25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong and the British Virgin Islands are subject to withholding
tax ranging from 10% to 25% on their taxable rental income,

management fee income and interest income in the PRC.

The provision for LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive
rates of the appreciation value, with certain allowable
deductions.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities are set out in note 24.

The EIT Law also requires withholding tax upon distribution
of profits earned by the PRC entities since 1 January 2008 at
5%. At the end of the reporting period, deferred taxation of
HK$2,815,000 (2014: HK$2,280,000) has been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to such profits.
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AR BA S BRTE B )

BREZZ—HAENA =1 H R4

For the year ended 30 June 2015

12. B (4)

7 AF B N B TR S AT BEL AR S 4R Al M H
At 2 THT Wi 25 3% 2 R I AL BR AN R

WL (BHR) A

(Loss) profit before taxation

ik Application tax rate

AR BB %FH  Tax at the domestic income tax rate
ZHE

ATEBUERERTT A Tax effect of expenses not deductible
Kb Z BB for tax purpose

FHEBIER A E AR Taxeffect of income not taxable
WAZBBR for tax purpose

FUMARBERL  Taxeffect of tax losses not recognised
i %

ABLEER S Taxeffect of share of loss of a joint
Yy % venture

WIEEERE (M%) Under (over) provision in prior years

BRI AR Utilisation of deductible temporary
A e 2 A difference previously not recognised

JERTRLER 2 RRBL%  Effect of different tax rate
HEATZY for subsidiaries subject to

withholding tax

WA EF AR A2 Deferred tax liabilities resulting from
BREMELL withholding tax on undistributed
BB EAK profits of a subsidiary

THEER PR Effect of LAT

b Others

REEREL Tax charge for the year

12. TAXATION (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

B i By E Y] CES

Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Total
“R-f CZ-E CR-fi% CT-RE Z%-hF CZ-E
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
#W¥re  EWTT #¥TL EWTT BFTL ENTo
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS$’000 HKS000
(1,197) (1,648) 123,553 120,960 122,356 119312

16.5% 16.5% 25% 25%

(198) 2mn) 30,888 30240 30,690 29968
402 499 3,178 1,716 3,580 8215
(2,831) (2953) (1,300) (3,638) 4,131) (6.591)
2,627 2726 - - 2,621 2726
- - 3,008 2453 3,008 2453
- - 29 (421) 2 (421)
- - (2937) (1,420) (2937) (1420)
- - (16,723) (16,033) (16,723) (16,033)
- - 520 483 520 483
- - 2110 5963 2,110 5,963
- - 11 (2532 11 (2532)
- - 18,891 2811 18,391 2811
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13. kB 13. DIVIDENDS

—ER AP =& A
2015 2014

YT W T oo
HK$°000 HKS$'000

FARBSZE _F—HHENA Final dividend paid in respect of

=+ HIEFECIRE year ended 30 June 2014 of 2.5
A e S A R 2.5 Hong Kong cents (2013: 2.5
(ZF— =4 - 2510 Hong Kong cents) per share 5,485 5,485
FHR#EZE _E—TFEANH Interim dividend paid in respect of
=+ HIEFEEIRE year ended 30 June 2015 of 2.5
Hh A S TR 2,541 Hong Kong cents (2014: 2.5
(= F—HaE - g5l Hong Kong cents) per share 5,485 5,485
10,970 10,970
HEHEOERBE _Z-HFEANH =T The final dividend in respect of 3 Hong Kong cents per share
H 1k 4R BE AR A IS 1 e s 3 Al > A totalling HK$6,707,000 for the year ended 30 June 2015 has
56,707,000 7C - MEZE 1 I A I H A been proposed by the Directors of the Company and is subject

AR A LA o to approval by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.



DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fo 7 B 5 MR T PR R ()
BREZZ-TAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

14. HHRERN 14.

AN BTN T AN B B R T 4 v
A TIRRYE LT BB

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

- S T

ZR A

#BH Earnings

FIAE T e A Earnings for the purposes of basic
T 97 2 R 1) 2 ) and diluted earnings per share
(RAFHEA N (profit for the year attributable to
A B A R A i ) owners of the Company)

2015

2014
T T
HKS$'000

#W T
HKS$°000

101,586 94,972

I 43 ¥ H Number of shares
MERIE G R EARF 2 Number of ordinary shares for the

o purpose of basic earnings per share 219,403,681 219,403,681
A JBCHHE TR T i R Effect of dilutive potential ordinary

BB shares on share options 14,066,666 13,065,734
WO SR R R Number of ordinary shares for the

o % purpose of diluted earnings per share 233,470,347 232,469,415
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15. W3 ~ R Kot i

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AL+ WA %

)3 E2 L) 8 Hp

Leasehold Office

land and Motor equipment

building vehicles and others Total

BT BT BT BT

HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
%3 COST
RoE—Z4EEH—H  AtlJuly2013 1,780 5,786 3,300 10,866
S R Exchange realignment 6 20 11 37
NE Additions = = 88 88
W& Disposals/written off = (69) (115) (184)
ATE-TEAAZFH At30 June 2014 1,786 5,137 3,284 10,807
oA Exchange realignment 12 33 6 51
RE Additions = = 186 186
g ¢ Disposals/written off - - (18) (18)
RZZ—-FHEANZHH At30 June 2015 1,798 5,770 3458 11,026
it DEPRECIATION
RoE—Z4EELH—H  AtlJuly2013 500 5338 2,979 8,817
RSk Exchange realignment 2 18 10 30
ENGER Provided for the year 85 9 56 150
s BB Eliminated on disposals/written off = (57) (112) (169)
REZ—WEASA=+H  At30June 2014 587 5,308 2,933 8,828
i Exchange realignment 4 30 4 38
A HE A Provided for the year 85 = 76 161
i AR S Eliminated on disposals/written off - - (13) (13)
REB—HEANNZTH At30 June 2015 676 5,338 3,000 9,014
R i CARRYING AMOUNTS
RZZ-FHEANZHH At30 June 2015 1,122 432 458 2,012
REFE—NEAA=Z1H  At30 June 2014 1,199 429 351 1,979

A 4R T AH B o R M T 2 R T (R B 5
(0T AV GRS DR/
F A LB ARCTE S BB R - M R MR )
Z AT AT B o BT > WORETH AR B 0
HMEMEE -

£ % 2 HL AL EH R AR EAK - By
3~ RS SO T E AR T B AR R

FHE £ K #E e AT B HE 204

(DA i 2 oy e )
B 1 15% %.20%
N 3 B S HoAth 10% £.33.3%

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and building
comprises property situated in PRC and held under medium-
term of lease. As the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
classified as finance lease.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated at the following rates per annum after taking into
account of their estimated residual value:

Over shorter of lease term
and 20 years

15% to 20%

10% to 33.3%

Leasehold land and building

Motor vehicles
Office equipment and others
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16. #tE ¥ 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

T T
HKS$'000

AT
WoZ—=FLA—H
S
AT R HRL 4 9 T

R_F—NENA=1H
SRR
DN (A 38 A 18 4 1A e R

HoF—HAEANA=TH

W E—FAE R E—TENH =+
H> REBBEYEZ A TFETTRE
B 7 £F [ 7 418 BE 2 2 M ST A B R 2
A7 {8 Rl 28 7 (35 — K P 980 4 0 4k (8 &
BHERMARAA) > A% H T 2
A E > HEAAH G 8 &N A B
I KH Bl AT AN 2 858 o BZ AN E
Ty 2 BRI 8 b A (R Hh I 0L ) 3 ROE
KIEU s kB ER R A B RHE LY
ERREMSVE W EA I A (N8
F) o FEA 51 B ST {E B i 3 2 2k
T TR A 157,224,000 TG (& — PO 4E ¢
W5 56,171,00000) E AR N © T A
& Wy 2E I v BN e 7 R AR A

A 55 M DL B SRR B A A 18 A T A O
A5 W BUE AR I (E 2 BEE Y S W R
ERE LA E T i EHRE -

FAIR VALUE
At 1 July 2013 1,867,428
Exchange realignment 6,480
Increase in fair value recognised in

profit or loss 56,171
At 30 June 2014 1,930,079
Exchange realignment 12,798
Increase in fair value recognised in

profit or loss 57,224
At 30 June 2015 2,000,101

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
30 June 2015 and 2014 has been arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out on that date by Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited, an independent firm of qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group with
appropriate qualification and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to property listings for similar properties
in the same location and conditions or where appropriate by
considering the capitalised income to be derived from the
existing tenancies and the reversionary income potential of the
properties. The revaluation gave rise to a net gain arising from
increase in fair value of HK$57,224,000 (2014: HK$56,171,000)
which has been credited to profit or loss. All the investment
properties are situated in the PRC under medium-term lease.

The investment properties of the Group held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model for both years.
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16.

WA E ARG T > F R FEA 4%
EY N EE A B R A TR (B
A Jb 5 S G 3R A1) T &
AAb R K AR R R A 0 T BT AR
& o HEEELEMHSWANEARL
WEHHE - TRTHHEN > GHE
A Al R E B 4.50% 2 5.25% (. — 1Y
A 5.00% % 5.25%) 0 FKn G E KA
Al AR WA G K o W &AL L
REVEHATHEED > KZIRK -
CIN:R7E F:0mE 2w S=:0R B K v
THE e EHRSARS T K
NER¥S T E AR #1760 (—F — 1Y
T T RARBESGITE AR
J0) 5 o By 5 — R K R A S
ATGE o BT Moo & g R A
TAHEBE > R ZIRIK o

e B RS N > R RS A R
At 5T 45 HE 8 E O 0 BN nf B
oo B S8R A At DR 2R A0 R T R
ER ORIV AT R S = A
#:179,176,000 7 ( — & — PO 4F @ ¥k HE
166,299,000 7t ) ° fif I 5 B 35 77 35 B
JCEH B AR > R E KR Al B & A T
ESOIDLEC NI/ G RN SN
120,000 7T & A K #250,000 70 (2% — 0
40 N K %100,000 7T 2= A K # 190,000
JG) B R] R BT 4 BT B B B o
5 ) T 4 B T 6 S A R SN P {E B
o K Z IR o

3 A B PR T Al (B T ik A A o
AL FE Y S AT (E I > W) 36 B
e A R A LB A& -

AEEBEYEMESI B RN ESE
MR = RMRAFEEN - =5
(R13 . YNGR Sl

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing the investment
properties (except for carparks portions in Beijing) under the
income capitalisation approach were the capitalisation rate used
and market unit rent of individual unit. The capitalisation rate
used, taking into account the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property, prevailing market condition,
ranging from 4.50% to 5.25% (2014: 5.00% to 5.25%)
represents the significant unobservable input. An increase in
the capitalisation rate used would result in a decrease in the fair
value and vice versa. Market unit rent of individual unit used,
derived from the market rentals from comparable properties
with a range of RMB85/sq.m to RMB176/sq.m (2014: RMBS83/
sq.m to RMB169/sq.m) per month represents another significant
unobservable input. An increase in the market unit rent would

result in an increase in fair value and vice versa.

Key unobservable input used in valuing the carparks portions in
Beijing amounting to HK$179,176,000 (2014: HK$166,299,000)
under direct comparison approach was the market unit sales
rate with adjustment on other factors, such as time and location.
Market unit sales of carparks used, derived from the markets
unit sales comparables with a range of RMB120,000 to
RMB250,000 (2014: RMB100,000 to RMB190,000) per unit,
represents the significant unobservable input. An increase in
the market unit sales used would result in an increase in the fair

value and vice versa.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties is classified
as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers
into or out of Level 3 during both years.
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17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE

R4 —E AR

2015 2014

W T T or

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

BE A > FE LT () Cost of investment, unlisted (Note) 147,766 117,615
Wi W 45 M L I fekt A8 110 0 Share of post-acquisition loss and

reserves (53,299) (41,380)
94,467 76,235
BB ERK Amount due from a joint venture 239,924 252,355
Mt it Note:

R AR L o AR 42 S eh g S P I A
HEAE 5 ik 02 b B PR AP AR 2 5 - WUH PR C AT
Feaf > i BB B S MR E RGO =%
T AR Jo = — BAEAE ) sk -

AEFR VLR o A G I AN R 42,840,000 78
E By 38 G AR > A 31 2 5 HE E 22 (19 80% o AR 4% 1
ARV > Y3 2 5 A R R AR 121,000,000
o HhAEEMEBFEEBES N HE AR
10,290,000 7C J2 A E #10,710,000 JC > i A 4
B o)y & Y A 4 A R A Y 2E 2 TOHE RE 45 49% K
51% o 74 48 [ 75 $2 3k B i & A A R 932,550,000 76
IF 25 T A 7 A< 4 1) 1] I ZE A W i B o

BEAL > A5 A A D R A B A 4 T A A T
R lih A 2 TE A 1 I 2 5 A 0L v IR R YIOR
SRR — IR T i B % R i A G e A I 80% R
SRAE Y SCH -

H o ZZIUEANH =+ HARAEBE > A5 3 HAF
A1 122 5 HEHE 5 49% LA HE £ 35 FE AR I 1
LRk - YT ARG E R E mYlE
ZEERA MO WA S AR -

A B [ 15 A Y112 HE 25 49% 1% 25 15 5E M 4 BT Ak
B LA A R ol A AR R HE 3 RR A B A R
TR T EEBMEN—BRE - MEE -F
—HENA=ZTH > HAPHEI I E31% 4 k%
10,368,000 UG (& — U 4F : i #10,368,000 7C) Wi A&
FLATERR ©

The Group had lodged petitions for international arbitrations in respect of the
dispute with the Chinese joint venture partner as to the percentages of equity
interest held in Zhen Wabh in prior years. Two arbitral proceedings were heard
and two arbitral awards were made by China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission in 2008 and 2010.

Before the arbitrations, the Group injected RMB42,840,000 as investment cost
to Zhen Wah, representing 80% of equity interests in Zhen Wah. Pursuant to
the arbitral awards, the registered capital of Zhen Wah was confirmed to be
RMB21,000,000, of which RMB10,290,000 and RMB10,710,000 were contributed
by the Group and the Chinese joint venture partner, respectively, and that the
equity interests of Zhen Wah were held by the Group and the Chinese joint venture
partner as to 49% and 51%, respectively. The additional capital contribution of
RMB32,550,000 by the Group was considered as advances to Zhen Wah by the
Group.

Also, the latter arbitral award supported the distribution of profit arising from
rental income generated from a piece of land held by Zhen Wah located in Tung
Kok Tau, Shenzhen, the PRC before re-development entitled by the Group should
be 80%.

The assets and liabilities of Zhen Wah were deconsolidated and the Group’s share
of net assets and results in Zhen Wah had been accounted for as a joint venture
under the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in Zhen Wah
since the year ended 30 June 2009.

The distribution of profit arising from rental income was accounted for under
the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in Zhen Wah. The
additional share of 31% up to 30 June 2015 which has not been recognised by the
Group amounted to HK$10,368,000 (2014: HK$10,368,000), as the Directors of
the Company consider the result of the arbitration is subject to the agreement of
the Chinese joint venture partner.
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17. SEAeRMER AR RK

(%)

RoF—HEAA=Z+THE-F N
EAA=ZTHNEEREFEBWT ¢

FRERAM

)3 3 Hl [
Place of
establishment

17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Particulars of the joint venture as at 30 June 2015 and 30 June
2014 are as follows:

7 45 5 A A
The Group’s

HHEEH

Name of joint venture

TR s 8 A 26 A PR A W

Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour
Enterprises Ltd.

WAt Yl ELE W —F —ME—H+AHE
o 2 A% > AR R FARCE T B IE HEAT
oo

R 9% T s T S i Y ) PR T ME g K
RA AL [ A A 0 B A R
o

G
PRC

equity interest

49% KRR (M)
49%  Operation ceased (Note)

Principal activities

Note: The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Thereafter,
Zhen Wah ceased its operation and is now in the process of liquidation.

A summarised financial information prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs in respect of the Group’s joint venture which is
accounted for using the equity method is set out below:

—ER-hAE
2015

YA
2014
BT o
HKS$°000

T
HK$°000

IE R Non-current assets 252,352 254,248
i BB E Current assets 53,246 58,737
it 8 A Current liabilities (14,461) (14,892)
i B B Non-current liabilities (239,924) (252,355)
51,213 45,738

bt EEXAREFHAENT

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the

following:
e S X 2 —E UL
2015 2014
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
e KB &% HE Cash and cash equivalents 44,433 49,924
EL o = O N Non-current financial liabilities
& 5y T o Ath 1 A H 3K (excluding trade and other payables
R HEA) and provision) (239,924) (252,355)
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17. BBLEMHE HBLEERXK 17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT

(#5) DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

e K5 4

ANH=1H ANH=1H

k4R 1k 4

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2015 30 June 2014

BT T T

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

e A Revenue - 2,456
AL E Loss for the year (24,530) (20,029)

A 3 A A T i g Other comprehensive income
for the year 205 270
A AT 4 TH S S A Total comprehensive expense
for the year (24,325) (19,759)
Rl AR AR R AR R The above loss for the year include the following:

—Z—hiE —E— Y

AH=1H NA=1H

1k 4E g 1L 4R

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2015 30 June 2014

BT T T

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

NP & X Depreciation and amortisation 4,490 4,546
B A Interest income 1,284 1,366
FIE Interest expense 15,563 14,651

T 158 3 Income tax expense - 181
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17.

] B 2t SV B R A B A AR 5 S
e L P9 T 0 1 788 i SHE M i P BRI (L

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

e S T —E U4

2015 2014
BT T
HKS$°000

W T
HK$°000

GEMNEFEE Net assets of joint venture 51,213 45,738
AEMBER G BSFEMLSN  Proportion of the Group’s ownership
R interest in a joint venture 49% 49%
25,094 22,412
PVE B IR LG A — B FE  Deemed capital contribution —

e A imputed interest income 63,518 48,464
b8, 46 5 Exchange realignment 5,855 5,359
AREEGEREERN Carrying amount of the Group’s

e THT (B interest in a joint venture 94,467 76,235

NELPIGELEAR > WAL
A ERA > AEBEATRGERERN
7 150% B0 2 HE -t S AL B AR
FAGINEE R & IR E - YIER
HEMER_F—HFE—A+/HE
o DI 58 87 B R E AN I A K
-2

AR P B R RIE AR > DA R A
F 22 B 0 ek R B O R R R 2
TE A8 8 W JE A% > U3k NE A
RAFAE > FL B 8 R 58 UR
HEREEE TN HEI R T EE
e A ABMERBEPNRERE
EEETN—HEZ - Wit AQF
FEHERCHNEHASALEERNSE L
% o TEAR & BB IR JH DAKE 2 & RHik A
HE o

Zhen Wah is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company and
indirectly held by the Company. The Group is able to exercise
50% voting power in the joint venture, which is determined
by the proportion of the Group’s representatives in the board
of directors of Zhen Wah. The operation period of Zhen Wah
expired on 16 January 2014. Both joint venture partners of Zhen
Wah have determined not to extend its operation period.

Based on the PRC laws and regulations and the related
interpretations by an external PRC legal counsel engaged by
the Group, after the expiry of the operation period, the legal
identity of Zhen Wah still exists and the net assets of Zhen Wah
will be distributed to the joint venture partners based on their
equity contributions after the completion of the winding up.
All the decision making of the voluntary winding up process
requires the unanimous consent of both joint venture partners.
Accordingly, the Directors of the Company continue to account
for Zhen Wah as a joint venture of the Group using the equity
method of accounting in these consolidated financial statements.
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17.

18.

19.

AL EHE R T 5 BB
B A LR CF W REZH IR A B
B B R ) o R R TR
HE=1THRERBEEFGREZFLHS
WMBREZ B> JIE R B IEAEEST
o M SRR (R B I
EEEN T REN) A AL LT &
HRH Rk

B A R K R R R AR
WA N A R EE - %R
DL AE6% (B —DU4E : 6%) T FE A
T B AR 5T -

NN G A O [ e Sl R VA E|
StTHAEBECEMZ RAESERK
487 4 B Ry HE 194,467,000 7T K #E B
239,924,000 7T 9 AT Y& 71 BE 7 o AR 31| 3
RO AR B IRIE > AN A EH BT
Hew a2l m -

(ENL/ES

A S5 ] 1 B 2 T 0 R B L AR A
EBRA REWMB K ZEWELEA
WEBEIT T 2 AERE >
B Ak w5t A 117,360,000 70 (L F —
PUAE © #k516,871,0007T ) T8 A 16 7 2 #Ht
WIR B+ A8 H 528 -

18.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

The management of the Group has been discussing with the
Chinese joint venture partner on relevant arrangements (which
may require approvals from relevant PRC governmental
authorities) regarding the winding up. As at 30 June 2015 and
up to the date these consolidated financial statements were
approved by Board of Directors, the winding up of Zhen Wah
is underway, however the detailed plan to proceed with the
winding up (including in respect of the potential sale of Zhen
Wah'’s assets) is subject to agreement between the Group and
the Chinese joint venture partner.

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured and to be
repayable after the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. The amount is carried at amortised cost at an
effective interest rate of 6% (2014: 6%) per annum.

The Directors of the Company have assessed the recoverability
of interest in a joint venture and amount due from a joint
venture amounting to HK$94,467,000 and HK$239,924,000,
respectively as at 30 June 2015. Based on the latest financial
information of Zhen Wah, the Directors of the Company have
concluded that the amounts will be fully recoverable.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The properties held for sale of the Group are situated in the
PRC and held under medium-term lease. At the end of the
reporting period, the properties are all available for sale in the
ordinary course of business, and the management estimates that
HK$17,360,000 (2014: HK$16,871,000) are expected to be
realised more than twelve months after the end of the reporting

period.
£k HE e Ml 5k 19. LOAN RECEIVABLES

2 XS —

2015 2014

B W T HHT T

HKS$°000 HK$’000

B O IR 3K Loan receivables 1,807 1,796
Wc R MR A Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (1,807) (1,796)
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19. FEaK EWOHR X (4 19.

M SR K T A R e B o R R
WK > ZEEEEC 2L -

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The loan receivables were unsecured and interest-free. The
amounts were all past due at the end of the reporting period.

20. 3 fib 4 b A

I IR 95 i 22 ) Movement in allowance for doubtful debts

e 2 X 2 —F N4

2015 2014

BT T T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

) At the beginning of the year 1,796 1,914
ok (A 43¢ e Impairment loss reversed - (126)

i, 46 5 Exchange realignment 11 8

AR At the end of the year 1,807 1,796

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

W oE—HENH=ZTH > KAl
IRFAS R B3 B R R AT SR AT H R
SRIELT F A 48 o 422 4 0 3K (LA PR AR A
L6.15% (& — VU 4E © 6.15%) 2y #F 54
A ) 2 R i B R 977,000 0T (&
— VU4 # W 136,00000) © BRI RS 19
TE B 7% 00 1 5 Bk Ah - AR LE Y L8
EATERZ PHEEH A0 (ZF
—PU4E 2 30H) o AR HHLF 2 4 ik
W I & 5 2 MR s Wi A B i B 8 s
7 BE L AA o

B 5 Be FU b HE W S Trade and other receivables
e S K 3 ZER AR
2015 2014
BT T HEWET T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
B Ty W R TH Trade receivables 11,435 10,476
HoAt E U AR - 73K & Other receivables, deposits and

TE A5 3K prepayments 7,407 5,820
18,842 16,296

W R R Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (4,027) (3,947)
14,815 12,349

At 30 June 2015, the balance of other receivables include
receivables from home buyers who defaulted on repayment
to banks, representing the loans taken over by the Group,
of HK$77,000 (2014: HK$136,000) which are measured at
amortised cost at an effective interest rate of 6.15% (2014:
6.15%) per annum. For property sales, other than home loans
disclosed in note 19, the Group allows an average credit period
of 30 days (2014: 30 days) to the buyers. Rentals receivable
from tenants and service income receivables from customers are
payable on presentation of invoices.
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20. LA Sk A 40

B 5 B L i MG R sk (A7)

R EMBIR > DAEETE H A AR E T 2
51 G Gy IFE i B 3K 111,435,000 06 ( —
F—PHAE - #H10,476,0007C) F0IE R IR
HE {75 153,731,000 00 ( & — PUA4E
#3,651,00070) 2 HREE A A a0 R -

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables of
HK$11,435,000 (2014: HK$10,476,000) net of allowance
for doubtful debts of HK$3,731,000 (2014: HK$3,651,000)
presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

—#—fiF  —FNF

2015 2014

0 T 8 1 7T

HKS$’000 HK3$°000

0H 2 60H 0-60 days 7,288 6,576
61 H #90H 61-90 days 396 100
90 H LI | More than 90 days 20 149
7,704 6,825

A SR A B2 o &P R H A AT
AL M FEAGE B R &P S AR R
EEXFEEH KFFTRBZES
BN E W R o Hrh B 5 IR R 2
85% ( . E — VU 4FE 1 93%) i JE 48 HA 58 i
> HA R ES Ak -

A% 42 18 & G I i R K B A R T (E 9
1,173,000 G ( 2 — U 4F : i ¥ 467,000
JC) ZEEE > AR ER A HE R
1 T NE S A S v = =
e MM ERERAAERLE &
BB R A v BT Y AT i A o AN 4R ]
S AR FE A B R A S AT TSR o
50 R A M T A A R 8% 2 e 52 F
(ZF—V4E - 74H) o

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
assessment on the creditability of the new customer and assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly. 85% (2014: 93%) of the trade receivables are neither
past due nor impaired and have good settlement repayment
history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors
with a carrying amount of HK$1,173,000 (2014: HK$467,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. There has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the management
considers that the amounts are still recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average overdue
age of these receivables is 52 days (2014: 74 days) overdue.
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20. HAb 4 mh&EE ) 20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
B By B M il K WO MR ok (A7) Trade and other receivables (Continued)
& 28 3 1 A Hi 0 i 2 JHE 53 40 #F Aging of past due but not impaired trade receivables
- —F YA
2015 2014
BT W T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
w i Overdue:
0H #30H 0-30 days 757 184
31H #£60H 31-60 days - 34
61H #90H 61-90 days 396 100
90 H LA | More than 90 days 20 149
Hm Total 1,173 467
I 15 1y 52 1) Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
e el S —F
2015 2014
YT T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
A At the beginning of the year 3,947 3,787
CRIEN, ZE iR Impairment loss recognised 153 147
i, 4 5 Exchange realignment 24 13
A 5 A [ K Tl B Amounts written-off as uncollectible 97) =
AR R At the end of the year 4,027 3,947

10 8 2 B o (B B R RE s > A
W58 H ) R EG T A
AH BAM A B E SR AT 5
B o H 5 R R IRBHE LU
TERISME BEHEMH

RIEHWEIEE O WEE RN E S
JE Wi R Bk A S A AR U 794,027,000 7T
(= F—DU4E  #%53,947,0000C) © % ME
Wi KA B R RS TR SIG HL KR R
W o A SR WG R R A S % AR A R 2 AT
AT 4 £ -

In determining the recoverability of a trade debtor, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade debtor
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting
date. The Directors believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts.

The allowance for doubtful debts of HK$4,027,000 (2014:
HK$3,947,000) are individually impaired trade receivables
which are in severe financial difficulties with long outstanding
balances overdue. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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20.

21.

il 4 k¥ P (a0)
T P e B K

% A LR - S B B OJH R Ry
fHR -

BT R W A7 K

LB AR A = A 00 ER AT WA AT B
0.77%%23.50% ( — & — 4 4F : 025% %
3.50%) 2 Wi B RGHE -

BT RO R B &

WMITHERLHE SO AEETE 2B
SRFEBMAE =ZMAKD R =MA
B R BR A 8 2 $RAT A7 3K o $RAT &5 B 1%
0.01%%035%( — & — 0 4 : 0.01% %
0.35%) Z T 55 F B R FHH o

B0 B Al HE A Mie K

MR_E—TEANA=1+H "5 kE
il 1 A5 R 3K &% R B 45 5 1,648,000 7T
(& —PU4E i 1,845,000 00) 2 &
ZIEAT IR o R AR - DB
9 A 36 e T B 5 R B A IR R 2 R
A I N

0H Z60H
60 H Ll |

A 8 A R Sk B A 4 A & R 4 A
129,578,000 7 ( & — VO 4F : ¥k ¥
27,934,000 70 ) K T i 3 JE #5 154,065,000
TG (S —PUAE ¢ 5 165,044,0000T) ©

0-60 days
Over 60 days

20.

21.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Fixed bank deposits

Fixed bank deposits with original maturity more than three
months carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.77% to
3.50% (2014: 0.25% to 3.50%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
deposits with banks which were not restricted in use with the
original maturity of three months or less. Bank balances carry
interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% (2014:
0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

At 30 June 2015, the balance of trade and other payables
included trade payables of HK$1,648,000 (2014:
HK$1,845,000). The following is an aged analysis of trade
payables based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

- S % —E—J4E
2015 2014
BWT T M oT
HK$’000 HK$°000
609 1,268

1,039 577
1,648 1,845

The other payables mainly include rental deposits of
HK$29,578,000 (2014: HK$27,934,000) and receipt in advance
of HK$4,065,000 (2014: HK$5,044,000).
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22. ST R 22. BANK LOANS
e S X 2 —E UL
2015 2014
BT B W T T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
A K SR AT B3 Secured bank loans 172,192 198,810
JRE 5 3 W T (. Carrying amount repayable:
— 4R Within one year 7,600 7,618
— AR AH AN A T A More than one year but not exceeding
two years 164,592 7,600
T AF AR A AN 28 AR More than two year but not exceeding
five years - 183,592
172,192 198,810
W B A U B B T ZE R Less: Amounts due within one year
— A I 2R R H shown under current liabilities (7,600) (7,618)
S I i B A AE 5)OH Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities 164,592 191,192

SRAT B DL AL P B E i BUE W 3
B T RAT A7 AR R o SRAT B KU

5% % B OB P R ZE PR B £2.08% ( —
T —D4E 12.08%) ZIF BI4E R RFHE -

The bank loans are secured by the investment properties situated
in Shanghai, the PRC and certain bank deposits. The bank loans
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The loans carried interest at variable rate of 2.08% (2014: 2.08%)
over HIBOR per annum.
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23. JBEAR

A % M5 1.00 7T 2 3 9 % A% Ay

W
RoBE—=FLA—H -
—E—PENA 1 H R
e L e

SR KR
REZF—-=FtEA—H"
ZE-MEANAZTHAR
—F-HAFEAH=ZTH

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015

23. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each

Authorised:
At 1 July 2013,
30 June 2014 and

30 June 2015

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 July 2013,
30 June 2014 and

30 June 2015

JBe 4y ¥ H B

Number of

shares Amount
T or
HKS$’000

300,000,000 300,000

219,403,681 219,404
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24. ¥EHEBLH A AE 24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

PATR 7 A% 4F B2 B3l 4 i 4 ) ] A< 45 )
e Rd 2 = B AR A B T B A B A

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting

periods are as follows:

o 1B
AR 2> Bl %k A /AL E S M

Undistributed

earnings of Investment

PRC entities properties Total
T T T T HHET T
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
AE—-ZFEHA—H  AtllJuly2013 1,790 259,251 261,041
TE 15 65 0 40 B Charge to profit or loss 483 9,886 10,369
bk E ik Exchange realignment 7 895 902
FE—DEANH =1 H At30 June 2014 2,280 270,032 272,312
TE 5 1 A 1 BR Charge to profit or loss 520 7,415 7,935
R R Exchange realignment 15 1,789 1,804
R —HAEANHZTH At30June2015 2,815 279,236 282,051

W oE—HFEANH=1H > REHTA
PR K B o 2l s ) 1 o (55 B 1E S 4R
£ W5 1 121,842,000 76 ( & — P AE ¢ i
105,911,000 70 ) © [ 2 BE T 52 & 2 ik
F L > W R AT T R E AT B TH G o 3%
ol T e 98 ] 4 PR 0 &5 e o

W oE—HFEANH=Z+H > REHT
FI0 U6k T IRF 2= AE 2 v 148,373,000 7T (
E— DU #859,776,0007T) o H A AT
By 10k BT IRF 2 AE 2 n] (i RE SR B
Il o BE Bl TE A7 7E > WOME S R 4 Bl JE &
FEE R 5% 1T 00U H PR 2 A R

At 30 June 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$121,842,000 (2014: HK$105,911,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2015, the Group has deductible temporary difference
of HK$48,373,000 (2014: HK$59,776,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised.
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RAFRPR FE—F+_H_-+—H
%meﬁﬁﬁ[mmﬁﬁaj
—F—-——F+ZHILH ZF/\ﬂEﬁ%
Liﬁﬁi A St 4 Al — T 4 R
TR M UE PR A SR B RE T # ([ 2011

AEFHM D > EEtEE RN —F  — 4+
T HJCH W W RS 4R
+ = A JUH B 1E2001 4E 513 o R 4N

2001 4F 5F#) K201 4F 58 & B 75 B &
HBTLLEEEHRSHEERMIEE -

R 42001 4 51 #) K 2011 4E 51 #) > AR
G Sl PN/ D o A I
HBTERAEEKSHRE (HHAEK

HAAFREFGHIEES) B T7 3R
AR N A (T By 1) 2 B B (158
B ) o B G B FR A A% R D LA
T = 2 ) B i % T A B R
JREMEE B (ZH B3 H ) 768 38 i H )
KRB Z Wi 5 GO BT
AH B R R U A A S TR S
Fr H R BT E 2 e 5 K i)
Py 1 (8 - mﬁ 2 B AT 4% T AT
7 il IFF 3 47 &%&%%Ew%ﬁ
ﬁ“?ﬂm@ﬁﬁmh%ﬁ%

BB AT B 2 10% o AR #2011 4F JriJ )
7% 10%4H 25 221,910,368 /I 43 T4 45 48 24
AR AR H BB BT R 10% -

ez T BN EE - BTHAEK
2 B AT ]+ W A 0 AT R 4R
A LS B B R T H B AT AR
1% > Ath 2K 4 ¥ K w] 17 48 3% 7 58 %
BE o n] AT B T R ME B ] A AR S D
EHGWEAMPR EASBEAART
Z BBEF 4 RZEENGERT
ZE TG W W 10T o 3% M R B RE AT
B HM N H R

St

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS

The Company previously adopted a share option scheme on 21
December 2001 (the “2001 Scheme”). On 9 December 2011,
an ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company approving the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”) which will
expire on 8 December 2021 and the simultaneous termination of
the 2001 Scheme with effect from 9 December 2011. Both the
2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme were adopted for the purpose
of providing incentives to Directors, employees and eligible
participants.

Under both the 2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme, the Board
of Directors of the Company may grant share options (the
“Options”) to Directors, employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries and such eligible participants at the discretion of
the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the terms
thereof, to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
at a price per Share not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant of the relevant Option,
which must be a trading day; (ii) the average of the closing price
of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the relevant Option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share. The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the share
option schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of the adoption of the
relevant share option scheme. Under the 2011 Scheme, such
10% represents 21,910,368 Shares, which continue to represent
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report. No Director, employee or eligible participant
may exercise option(s) granted to it under the share option
scheme if such exercise would result in him or her subscribing
for more than 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of such new grant in any 12-month period. The
option period for which the options granted are exercisable,
shall be such period as notified by the Board of Directors of the
Company, save that it shall not be more than 10 years from the
date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable by
the grantee on acceptance of each grant. The offer of a grant of
share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
the offer.
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25. B )BeHEE B R DA By Ry R BE 2 25,

3K 4%)

WoFE—-—FE+H +HB > AR
R %2001 4F 51 8 4% T & 3£21,900,000 72
BRETFHTEERSHE  AFEL
AP AR\ B A R E (A3
154500008 M E R TiZE AN L) >
A4 E A T (4 31,070,000 52 % #E B
BrYagSANL) RAREEBEM (&I
5380,000 58 L HE L1 7% % AN L) - i
MW 4 T A 42 3 4R A1 0 IR 15 B4R B 1 IR
AL o 5% F R RE A 0 T DA AT
RGBT —FE—-—F+H =
THAR-EF—JFETHZ AT
i o S S B M o 0 R 2 B AN 4
B R & - A i BR A S [ IRF R AT RR
REhE > GRRRE G BN - R -F—H
FEXNA=ZTH > #2001 FE5H# 2R H
R i AR AT A 58 M HEAH B 1 BB £
21,600,000 B ( = & — M 4 : 21,600,000
BE) o AH S AN D AL HE2001 4 5T
HHZ AT R AN9.9% (. F —PU4F ¢
9.9%) o

THHRERERE _F—HLEAA=
THEZEFE-NEANA=Z+HILFE
W AN EE B (G163 4 S R )
B A B AR BHE R R

B AT 1 i

Exercise price

Date of grant per share
75
HK$

2001 4 5t 31

2001 Scheme

“EF-—%t+HA-+HxH 1.13

25 October 2011 1.13

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

On 25 October 2011, the Company granted a total of 21,900,000
Options under the 2001 Scheme to certain eligible participants,
including the Directors of the Company and Director of the
Company’s subsidiary (15,450,000 Options in aggregate being
granted to such persons), employees of the Group (1,070,000
Options in aggregate being granted to such persons) and
consultants of the Group (5,380,000 Options in aggregate
being granted to such persons). The services rendered by the
consultants to the Group were similar to employee’s services.
All such Options may be exercised from 25 October 2011 to 24
October 2019 at an exercise price of HK$1.13 per Share with no
vesting period. Options are cancelled if the grantee who are the
employees of the Group leaves the Group before the options are
exercised. As at 30 June 2015, the number of Shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the 2001 Scheme was 21,600,000 (2014: 21,600,000)
Shares, representing 9.9% (2014: 9.9%) of the Shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the 2001 Scheme.

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s Options
held by employees (including Directors and consultants) during
the years ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014:

i AR AT B

W JBe HE B H

gt S 2
tH—H-

RN
AH=Z1H

B R 14
ANH=Z1H

Number of Options

outstanding

at 1 July 2013,

30 June 2014 and

30 June 2015

LETEi 2

Exercisable period

—®——%+A=+EH
2oX—JUETAZ A
25 October 2011 to 24 October 2019

21,600,000

21,600,000




DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Ao B A s MR TEL A 5 40

BREZ-HAENAZTHIEEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

25.

wd B HE it 3 e DA ey 2y B 2 25

i3k (41)

WME-F-HEFAA=STAR-Z
— PN A = B R B
T A7 B R -

BLAEAE £ AR R W A 2 R R A AR
JE A GRS B R A F

BB AT 10

Exercise price

Date of grant per share
8
HKS$

2001 4¢ 5} 1

2001 Scheme

—EF-—%t+H=+1aH 1.13

25 October 2011 1.13

FRR _ZF——FTH - t+HHES
)RR B RE DA TR AT 8 E R R
A H B2 AP A 03750C ©

K % 88 & Sh > 422001 4F 5t #) %2011 4F
FE A BRAN B R o M BT A R R
W HR ZZF—RHENA=Z+HH A
FE—PAENA =+ B A DB HE R
1T o

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

No options were granted, exercised or lapsed during the years
ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014.

Details of the Options held by the Directors of the Company
included in the above table are as follows:

R AT B

W JBe i B H

) g S 3
tH—H-
ZF A
ANHA=1H

B R4
AA=1+H
Number of Options
outstanding

at 1 July 2013,

30 June 2014 and
Exercisable period 30 June 2015

—EF-—%t+H=+nH 12,350,000
2ZE—AETAZ+HMHA
25 October 2011 to 24 October 2019 12,350,000

For the Options granted on 25 October 2011, the fair value
of each Option determined as at the date of grant using the
Binomial option pricing model was HK$0.375.

Saved as disclosed, no other Option was granted under
2001 Scheme or 2011 Scheme since their adoption, and was
outstanding as at 30 June 2015 or 30 June 2014.
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26. BARAM

AEEYG PRI R EE B
AR B RRMERATERE SRR
R - RN _F—-HFEANH=1+H:"
AL PR AL R S R B K A
#13,313,000 70 ( — & — PU 4 ¢ i W
20,600,000 7% ) © A2 7 #5857
S BB ISR A TR 2 A5 B AR B (A b R
T > WA B A AR A ) 2 R T
TR R R 2 A EE AN E K o

27. MLERYE
A 4 2y AR AL -
B R > A 4 T R O B

W) 3 BT T S S AT R S A8 A B T A
JRE A} e AR AL B TE AR I T

26.

27/

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has given guarantees in respect of the settlement
of home loans provided by banks to the home buyers of a
property project in Beijing, the PRC. At 30 June 2015, the
Group had given guarantees in respect of such home loans of
HK$13,313,000 (2014: HK$20,600,000). The Directors of
the Company consider that the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts at their initial recognition and at the end of
the reporting period are insignificant on the basis of the low loan
to value ratio.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases in respect of rented premises for offices as follows:

—R—TAE —E UL

2015 2014

BT T T

HKS$°000 HKS$°000

4R Within one year 2,489 831
R B HAENR In the second to fifth year inclusive 3,710 -
6,199 831

B T B = 4 (B
WAE) T AL AF 1 2 i 4 Y
EH -

A B2 AL

o AR A 4 A FT R I HE T AR 4 AL
SR R E 2 A B AL IR A T
AW B e A EE ez =8 - #&
BEOE-FAENHZ=ZTHIEEN -
JiT B B 2 B AR A 4 Ui A 2 s HE 8,435,000
TG (ZF— A #5157,970,0000C) ©

Leases are negotiated for an average term of three years (2014:
two years) and rentals are fixed over the term of the leases.

The Group as lessor:

Contingent rental income was calculated based on the excess
of certain percentage of revenue of the relevant operation of
the lessee that occupied certain of the properties over the fixed
portion of the monthly rentals. Contingent rental income earned
during the year ended 30 June 2015 is HK$8,435,000 (2014:
HK$7,970,000).
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27. RIERYE ) 27.

A2y HALE (AT

RERBAR . DTEEHKEHEM
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LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessor: (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were

rented out under operating leases:

—F—hiE e S uikis

2015 2014

W F o W

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

HEY) = Investment properties 1,817,551 1,737,345
REWE Properties held for sale 14,328 14,235

ZEREFHHEN A =4 mRME
FAMAE > EEE A BE A o

R RIR - A 4R B SR AR T A
18 1 4 4 AR R T 2R R Wi i K AL B K
THARWMT

These assets were leased out for average term of three years
with renewal options given to the lessees for further periods not
exceeding two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases:

e S % — U4

2015 2014

BT T BT T

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

W—4ER Within one year 87,795 80,472
JAES B AR In the second to fifth year inclusive 92,034 107,384
HAELL | Over five years 3,770 4,373
183,599 192,229
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28.

38 i A il =

() R_FFFFE+_A—HAH > &

EEBTAGEMESR LIREE®
75 E R AR A R EH R (5
P8 that @l 1) o FE i FUR K
RIElCEE MBI ZEEE M
ol B A 45 M) 2 S B R B o A
R B AT 2 B ST
B A OB AR E  RA £
R 6 AT L R e 3 R L AR
ALE ] H AR 2 ke

HoZEZEFFE+_H B> &
4 B 5% oL R B e A o SR K
BIRGEHE 2 B T A — Wtk
FEHE > P BT o8 A e Al 3 B AR
B 2 5H# - AR #I O AR
A5 98 1k 20 5 4w A0 91 e R A
SEHHFEM o B SR 2 &
FE H ST 2 REE B 5 I BLAC AR
Bl B PR B - RPE IR AL &
& el - 48 &% H R B 2 [l A
R FT W] 22 B R AR K o S
A Ao i A3 mT 3 A AR e
A B AR Z -

F 5 I OB R R # K o AR <
BT 5 BN A 5 1 4R S CH Al &
[ R N I S
Ao Jo A B 1% % A w0 ET
W 2 B < 1 AR H R A fiE 3

1 B PR #& 1k 5 7€ {3t 3R AR st 3 T
TCEE 22 M RO T R 4 BE 2 2 i
FI0 > w%sIH AT A AR A A
HRAR S E BB RaH BB E AE R
B AF JBE JE A Rt K o

28.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(a)

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (“Defined
Contribution Scheme”) for its qualifying Directors and
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Defined
Contribution Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Where there are Directors and employees who
leave the Defined Contribution Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the amount of the forfeited
contributions will be used to reduce future contributions
payable by the Group.

With effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has set
up a MPF Scheme. Members of the Defined Contribution
Scheme were given one-time option to choose to transfer
to the MPF Scheme or remain in the existing scheme. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
rates specified in the rules. No forfeited contributions are
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years by the employer.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the Defined Contribution Scheme and the MPF Scheme
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income represent contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the schemes.

There are no forfeited contributions in both years which
arose upon employees leaving the Defined Contribution
Scheme and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group under Defined Contribution Scheme
in the future years.
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28.

29.

B AR A wE o)

() AMEEA B Rk ) KRR >
BB 2N T R A A e ZE AR R O o
B VR Y R B E > o B RT
W 4 2 20% & 9% > 1 B iR AR 48
Fl 5T # sz A | B TR K 4R
A HERK o

A BE N B K AR R RO
#625,000 G ( & — PO 4E ¢ ki
668,0007C) B 5F A S A o

¥ e

Bk B 5E 5726 JH BT 4% 8% A S @ gt 4R AT
BTEHETHEHRZAARE SHT#EA
WA A > A 4 IR B A% R AT A7 3K
W 5210000 76 ( = & — VU 4 ¢ fk B
6,390,000 7T ) #K T 4R 4T > fE S TAE
FERZZEERBR KM - 77
AL F 035% (= F — W A4E : 035%)
ZERETELRFE > BEROBLE
M ZE EGE DL K AH BE W C I T AR
115 FeGi)fE B B R & SOE R 1K K
(DABSHT & By 1) R IR -

W oE—HENH=Z1TH, AELH-HD
] §R AT HE P AL R BB IR E W
2 HUE A (E 5 i 15 850,864,000 7 (
T — PO 4E - 3k 820,157,000 C) 5 & T
SRAT &5 B S SR AT A7 AU 162,278,000 UG
(& —PU4E © #%19,191,000 5T ) ;5 ##
A T A A KK
TH 5 DL HE A A SR R RO A
RS A (AR 0 A P 4 2 8 B M S &
A ) 100% B HE B #5 2 B 1y > DA AR %
TASE [ — AR AT RLE o SRAT HE 1P 4
% AT 3K 1.57% (. F — VU 4E ©0.53%)
ZAEREREE o

28.

29.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)
(b)  According to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiary and joint venture are required to
contribute 20% and 9% of the stipulated salary set by the
Beijing and Shenzhen local governments, respectively,
to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of their employees.

During the year, the retirement benefits contributions
charged to profit or loss are HK$625,000 (2014:
HK$668,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

In addition to the guarantees given by the Group for home loans
provided by banks to certain buyers as disclosed in note 26,
the Group has also pledged its bank deposits of HK$5,210,000
(2014: HK$6,390,000) to banks to secure such home loans
granted to the home buyers. The deposits carry floating interest
rate of 0.35% (2014: 0.35%) per annum on average and will
be released upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate and the relevant property pledged to the
bank; and (ii) the full repayment of mortgaged loan by the home

buyers.

At 30 June 2015, the Group had pledged its investment
properties situated in Shanghai, the PRC, with a carrying
amount of HK$850,864,000 (2014: HK$820,157,000), certain
bank balances and bank deposits of HK$2,278,000 (2014:
HK$19,191,000), an assignment of rental and sale proceeds
from the investment properties and a charge over share in
respect of the Group’s 100% equity interest in Move On
International Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, to the bank to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group. The pledged bank balances and deposits
carry interest rate of 1.57% (2014: 0.53%) per annum.
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30. BLABHBE A RN 30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
B A B k565 8 T 1738 A 4 5% & Ak - AR Other than those disclosed in notes 8 and 17, during the year, the
[ B AT BE BN R R ARAEE N E T Group has entered into the following transactions with related
RS companies:
- —F YA
2015 2014
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
S PN Rental income received 283 449
2 i = A e A Other income received 403 231
B4 R A (i) Rental and management fees paid (Note) 2,808 2,771
B A I AR A5 2 Consultancy service fees paid 1,000 1,000
ERNEAEE Agency fees paid 758 757
B aE - %5 AT B 2 58 T W 4 T 4 RN R Note: Certain amounts of these related party transactions also constituted
FFRERELS (ERRBEBBH AL A continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
PR 2% ) w25 b BB (0 kol BUA D) 55 14A Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
) o AN FHE S EBSE LA 14A % Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors of the Company
I R SR B AE > B A R A AE A AR R [ R have complied with the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the
FBEZE S | R - Listing Rules by including the relevant disclosure in the section headed

“Continuing Connected Transactions” in the annual report.

M_F—HENA=ZTHEZ_%F—H Other outstanding balances with the following related
EARA=TH NTIHBBARZH companies, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
il R 28R A B (3% 56 T AR AT - demand, at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014 are as follows:

BB BORRHEOR) |AIE

e
2015 2014

#W T W T oo
HK$°000 HKS$'000

MANE S B H M E R 2 Deposits due from related companies
JRE WS A IR B D 4 4 included in trade and other receivables 531 430

WAE G B H A REWIEZ 2 Amounts due from related companies
JRE WS A B T 4 ) K IE included in trade and other receivables 1,920 890

WA S B HAEA RS 2 Amount due to a related company

JE A A B W 2 R R included in trade and other payables 814 765
T 2 1B B AR 3K Amount due from a non-controlling

shareholder 970 964
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300 ABBEZRY (4) 30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
B R TS B AR s R A T The related companies are companies controlled by certain
B A FE o Directors of the Company.
ALEEEEERANRE G EDS > K The Group’s key management personnel are all Directors,
S TN S I T B 355 11 E A B R o details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 11.

31 A2 W) B R B R 31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

AN B A BRI OR BB IR L B4 Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the
reporting period includes:

—R—TAE —E—U4E
2015 2014
BT T T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
I Uit Bh & Non-current Assets
T B B8 2 E HE Interests in subsidiaries 412,545 411,350
L/ EN Ty & Property, plant and equipment 27 27
FfF Jag§ 2 F) B K Loans to subsidiaries 684,664 655,952
1,097,236 1,067,329
T Current Assets
At B SRR T B TELASE R Other receivables and prepayments 209 351
SRAT A B I B & Bank balances and cash 12,334 13,253
12,543 13,604
it B A Current Liability
H Ath JRE A B 3K Other payables 4,110 4236
B A Net Current Assets 8,433 9,368
B AE OB A S Total Assets less Current Liability 1,105,669 1,076,697
=N Capital and Reserves
B A Share capital 219,404 219,404
Ml (WAt ) Reserves (Note) 673,231 662,430
AN 1 Total Equity 892,635 881,834
I i B A 67 Non-current Liability
i AR Amounts due to subsidiaries 213,034 194,863

1,105,669 1,076,697
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31. AAFAMBRIE ) 31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Mzt - G Note: Reserves

¥ 7 i ] B I
Be By e IE LAl B o Ml PR At
Capital Share

Share Translation redemption option Retained

premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
wHToT  EEFTIT  BETT  #ETT BETFT  BETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000

RoE—=4 At 1 July 2013

+tH—H 426,759 203,528 1,644 8,100 14,407 654,438
A BE i A Profit for the year = — — = 15,826 15,826
i 507 A 2 Exchange differences arising on

- ] translation = 3,136 = = = 3,136
AR AR JE A T Total comprehensive income

i A A8 for the year - 3,136 - - 15,826 18,962
B4 e Cash dividends

(Mt #t % 137H) (Note 13) = = = = (10,970) (10,970)
i ZE P AR At 30 June 2014

NA=1+H 426,759 206,664 1,644 8,100 19,263 662,430
74T BE 5 A Profit for the year - - - - 16,055 16,055
fE 52, 2 A= 2 Exchange differences arising on

o e % translation = 5,716 = = = 5,716
A AF JE A T Total comprehensive income for

Nk the year = 5,716 = = 16,055 21,771
B4 B S Cash dividends

(M7t %513 7H) (Note 13) = = = = (10,970) (10,970)
) S K At 30 June 2015

AAZTH 426,759 212,380 1,644 8,100 24,348 673,231
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32. BEHE A R 32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES
MRoE—HEANA=Z+TH K -F—N Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2015 and
FEAAZ1TH TEREBARZFER 30 June 2014 are as follows:
mr
AR
- , LRI /it
WEAT4R WL/ R TR RAGERA /B A AT I
Proportion of nominal
value of issued/
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid up registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration/operation share capital/registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
ik K
Ordinary Others
35K
2Tk “E2-1ik “R-m
2015 and
2015 2015 2014
AL FARA Fil L W 3 - - 0% fEER
Ardent Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1,200 HKS1,200 - - 100%  Investment holding
IrHEERERSEARAR PR - - X000 E230000000 W% WERERRE
(Hit—) (Wiit=)
Beijing Longfast Property PRC (Note 1) - - US$30,000,000  US$30,000,000 9% Property investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (Note I) (Note 1) development
FiRp AR Fi L3 o - - 0% RERERE
Billion Stock Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 10%  Provision of nominee services
FRRLHE £V £411 - - 0% REER
Broad Capital Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands US$1 Uss1 - - 100%  Tnvestment holding
R EEARAA Eik o o - - 0% PERE
China Gain Properties Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 10%  Property investment
ENERAR SEBELRE R0 EES00007 - - % fEER
Dynamic (B.V.L.) Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 U8850,000 - = 100%  Tnvestment holding
EAER (LR ARAT EBELHE L3 R - - 0% BE
Dynamic Management (Beijing) ~ British Virgin Islands HKS7 HKS7 - - 10%  Financing
Limited
ENERRBARAR Fik i i - - 0% fREEERE
Dynamic Management Services ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 100%  Provision of management
Limited services
&k 3 o - - 0% REERRE
Dynamic (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HKS2 - = 100%  Provision of management

services
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R BB MR TR R R )
BREZZ-TAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

32. REWEA AN @)

B AR

W/ AR

Place of incorporation/

Name of subsidiary registration/operation

i1 1
Ordinary
“F-hk

2015

RARNE (TR FAER  HRELHE LAV

AR
Dynamic Real Estate (China) British Virgin Islands Us$1

Management Consultancy

Limited

EBRAHE 22

Glory Diamond Inc. British Virgin Islands US$10
BB EARA Fil o
Harvic Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2
RESEARA SREARE EZAV
High Grand Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands US$1
BRERARA Fil v
Move On International Limited Hong Kong HKS1

—~ FE P B A ST 2 b s R BE S b BH 8 A
PR & (T Jb B¢ A WR D) 5% it 2 op 4h & 15
F /N I e i N T S
30,000,000 7 o i 7 A 4F BT % 7F 2 6
430,000,000 7C ) A< 45 [ BT 0 /2 2 A - AR
MM > 7 58 46 [R] 2 AT 48 45 b 50 R 1 9595 il
MR FEEE -

— -~ B J1 A BR 2 H M Glory Diamond Inc. B 7%
AR HBEEGEAS > A KRS R A
WA -

[

AR L R TS WY AR
LB < /NN A I
B B At BEF G 2 ) R R R IR AR 2

PO~ B 2 A AR A% A AR A A AT IR [ 4
I AT AT 0] BE5 a0 o

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

THIRSERA /YA

Issued and paid up
share capital/registered capital

EZA )
Uss10

S T
HKS2

EZAVH
Uss!

i3V
HKS1

Notes:

AR

CEIRA /i

VAT B I

Proportion of nominal

value of issued/

registered capital

held by the Company  Principal activities
i
Others

“E-1ifER

-1k “E-pE
2015 and

215 2014
- - 0% EEH
- = 10%  Management consultancy
- - 0% RERER
- - 100%  Tnvestment holding
- - 0 REER
- - 100%  Investment holding
- - 0% REER
- - 100%  Tnvestment holding
- - 0% ERE
- - 10%  Property investment

Beijing Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Longfast™)
established in the PRC is registered as sino-foreign co-operative joint
venture. Beijing Longfast had a registered capital of US$30,000,000. The
amount of US$30,000,000 disclosed in both years above represents capital
paid by the Group. However, the Group’s entitlement to share the profit
and net assets in Beijing Longfast was agreed to be at 95%.

Other than Dynamic (B.V.I.) Limited and Glory Diamond Inc., which are
wholly-owned directly by the Company, all subsidiaries are held by the
Company indirectly.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year, or at any time during the year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B 5 ik 22

BRH

FEERRARHN
15

A A
(W)

A 4 0
(B M)

R R~ AU R HE SR

W% R
B %
AR
ALK

JoA e WSR3
T E

HEME

A0 FBEA AR HE 45
ey
Y

AT K

— AR R AR
IEIEBLE A
LB £ 1

ARAE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Turnover 100,096

REAA=ZTHIEEE

Profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company 75,814

Basic earnings per share
(Hong Kong cents) 34.6

Diluted earnings per share

Year ended 30 June
ZE-ZF ZZ—NF %%
2013 2014 2015
BT BT wW T
HKS$'000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000

(Restated) Restated)

94,216 124,504 106,215 103,437
85,003 123,166 94,972 101,586
38.8 56.2 433 463
38.5 54.1 40.9 435

(Hong Kong cents) N/A

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND

EQUITY
RAH=1H
At 30 June
TR e S ¥
2013 2015
BT T wH T
HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000
Restated)

Property, plant and equipment 2,447 2222 2,049 1,979 2,012
Investment properties 1,645,704 1,737,936 1,867,428 1,930,079 2,000,101
Interest in a joint venture 65,759 60,972 85,614 76,235 94,467
Amount due from a joint venture 228,154 246,393 236,927 252,355 239,924
Other receivables - - - - -
Current assets 207,545 228,256 259,918 279,970 293,542
Total assets 2,149,609 2,275,719 2,451,936 2,540,618 2,630,046

Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 1,511,295 1,626,861 1,781,014 1,871,313 1,974,794
Non-controlling interest 217,789 29,626 32,851 34,466 36,572
Total equity 1,539,084 1,656,487 1,813,865 1,905,779 2,011,366

Bank loans

— due after one year 160,210 205,718 - 191,192 164,592
Deferred tax liabilities 212,026 231,355 261,041 272,312 282,051
Current liabilities 238,289 182,219 377,030 171,335 172,037
Total liabilities 610,525 619,292 638,071 634,839 618,680
2,149,609 2,275,719 2,451,936 2,540,618 2,630,046
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PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET OF AFFILIATED COMPANY
BB ARl Z S G OTE ERRE

T E—-FHFENA=ZTH > AXFEH T —  Details of advances given to an affiliated company as at 30 June
MBS A B ERE L% (GEFRRFWB S 2015, which exceeded 8% under the assets ratio as defined under rule
o ARA RS LA A (T Ei Bl |)  13.16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
H13.1606) T B E 8% I HGR &R AN T - Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™) are as follows:

AL
Affiliated company BT I V&gl

Percentage of

equity held by Amount of

the Group advances
W4T oo
HK$°000

TR Y] 2 o 355 A 25 A R 2 7] Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour
(TYN3 ) (HfzE) Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”) (Note) 49% 239,924

Bitat - Y HE L =& — U4 — A+ HJE o 2 Note:  The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Thereafter, Zhen
1% > YIHEA AR R B B AT IE 5 - Wah ceased its operation and is now in the process of liquidation.

REMUG TYFER L RIEBEMAGEAMNZE  The advances to Zhen Wah by the Group have been accounted for as
KK > IR GE S MR IR TE M 3E 551775 A 4% amount due from a joint venture, details of which are disclosed in note

[ 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

B S A b AR R E A B 2 W K E  The amount of advances are unsecured and repayable after the next
T A B EE - twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

W E B A 1322 6 I @ B @ B2 > Pursuant to the continuing disclosure requirements under rule 13.22 of
B E-FHENA=ZTH > YIFEKRMH %S the Listing Rules, the proforma combined balance sheet of Zhen Wah
HEEAERMALEBIEY P EILMEL  and the attributable interest of the Group in Zhen Wah as at 30 June
WEEWMT - 2015 are disclosed as follows:

B B 2\ T4 4 PR R s R PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET OF
THE AFFILIATED COMPANY

i % 4 bk A4

¥ 7 1R JHE A 4 A

Proforma Group’s

combined attributable

balance sheet interest

BT T WM T

HK$’000 HK$°000

I Ui By Non-current assets 252,352 123,652

g E Current assets 53,246 26,091
i R=E Current liabilities (14,461) (7,086)
E =K Non-current liabilities (239,924) (117,563)

T & E Net assets 51,213 25,094
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ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD

CIESRCEYE Zigi)

R_FE—HENA=ZTH, IRFEHEEY
EZEEMR

o 28 v ¢
Ay

Approximate
Location

CiE YN i
T

HHEHRR
HE- TR
LA

BOERE =M
ZRE

site area

A

Residential and N/A
apartment

Unsold portion of

Phase IT and Phase I1I of
Chaoyang Garden

No. 25 Nan Lane

Ganlouyuan

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China

Particulars of properties held for sale at 30 June 2015:

T %R i
i B4 o

Approximate

b AN

7 4 B 2R

developed

gross floor Stage of Group’s

area completion interests

9,699 17 R
fEE
19,143 )5 IR
NE

B % 95%

9,699 sq.ft.
residential
19,143 sq.ft.
apartment

Completed 95%

% T
HA

Expected
date of
completion

AR

N/A
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ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD (Continued)
IR EEYE i e

HZE—HEARSA=ZTH iFaAHREY
EZREMT

fr &

Location

rhE R 3L AN Y

it

TR T

W 7S Lk

M 5 1 R 78 05 B 5 G

TR T T ORG-S B g

Levels 7 to 22 (without levels 13 and 14)
West Tower, Eton Place

No. 69 Dongfang Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai

The People’s Republic of China

LAk P NIEE e T

Jt

1 55 [ H 8% =

ME A
1~ 5 T R S e L
K5 = W75 5 4

Car parking spaces in Phase I, II, 11T
and commercial portion of Phase III

No. 25 Nan Lane

Ganlouyuan

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China

Particulars of properties held for investment at 30 June 2015:

ik LT 4R

Usage Lease term

e M 13

Office Medium

LEYEE R ekt

Commercial/ Medium
Car-parking
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SR IR

eI

ENEMARAF (AN ]) HEg ([#
Boofr ) KB BLRE O RO R R 4
SRR WL o A m B4 S R R
AN E g A R SR B B
£ DL R OB L (R BOR - FF
HERERT ~ B B R AR B9 B R B B o

WE R —TAENH =1 B k2 MR B
ERER S AN EE g R AR 2R
A M B B R AR R o B ARS8 T A
NEAIBEEERER HEFFRELHS N
AERFIALAEEERNERT > 8
A ) B B JE 2 w) (1A SR ) o8 7 45
EH RN ER -

WE_F—HFEANA=ZTHIEFEER &
2% F © M T B RS A R A U B 2 5 B
A BR 2> ) A g R (T kol B L) B %
T+ (RER R ERT) A S8 IR < R (1453
D) 22 s R RSy B R SC > SIS A IR R
frigiar A r sk m WA B A R
WA 2>\ e F R 2 A i o

A2 F AN B AE PR ER A SR IR ST R (8 B
50 (T AR ) > o 2 B YA <7 1
— B 0 CARTE b TR A B S AT A R A
e TR I ST R BT (A IR T I 2
S AN R HEE ([H#YE]) AR
BE B G Ak 7S O AR AR 51 o T 3 A
Hitmat AN A A EE R W AR DUk
PRI ST R <7 SR T W AR 7 -

WP ZHE TR

Ay T E PR A BT R B BR Bk - T SR R K
L TR] Y 3 S A AT 8 5 22 B 1 B ST ) (KBRS IR
ERT) ([ BRI ) o &8 r A 38 0 4F 4
EEMR  BAERC AL AR B0
WMEF-HEAA=ZTHIEBEEDE
ST A HE ST I A SO WY BT G R E o

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and management of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) strive to establish and uphold
good practices and procedures on corporate governance. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise an effective Board,
prudent internal and risk control, transparency and accountability to its
stakeholders including shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees
and the public.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, being the financial year under
review, the Board and the management of the Company have been
continually reviewing and enhancing the corporate governance
practices of the Company with reference to local and international
best practices from time to time. The Board believes that its continued
efforts in enhancing the Company’s corporate governance practices
have contributed to sustain the business growth of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) in the past years.

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company has applied the
principles and adhered to the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as amended from time to time (“Listing Rules”)
and where appropriate, met the recommended best practices in the CG
Code with an aim to safeguard the interests of the Company and its

shareholders.

The Company has also established an internal corporate governance
code (compliance guide) (the “Internal CG Code”), the contents
of which are in line with the CG Code as revised from time to time
according to the relevant amendments to the Listing Rules. The
Internal CG Code aims to facilitate compliance with the CG Code and
to give guidance to Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) and
the senior management of the Company in this respect. The Board will
continue to monitor and review the corporate governance practices and
procedures of the Company to ensure compliance with the CG Code
and to enhance its practices and procedures.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors on the same terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as amended from time to time (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has confirmed to
the Company that he has complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2015.
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EHRFGHATM EAATESR (RATHRF])
LoV 2 e Sr JF AT R (DB kBT & 3 )
M BE F—HFEANH =T HILFE
MR = F—RAFERA T HH EREG
AW

s 7k W 56 A (THERAITESF)
B A AN il 1 (1T B R AT HF)
B 2 B S A (HAT#H)
TAN Michael Gonzales 5 A= (B 178 H)
R (HAT#H)
HOE R e A (B 175 F)
FE RN RYa s (HAT#H)
HERIE ek (Fr FFEH AT )
SY Robin Chua i + (H5r FEHATESH)
SR AE I L (Fr FFEH AT )
GO Patrick Lim /&4 (H5r FEHATESH)
i S A (B 178 H)
(h—F—HHFELH+=H
BEAT)

AAFHAAMLBLIENTESF
Zih— A AMEE HEER R RA
BB R - AN F B AR
AT e 2 A R AR S - T
HFERMBLABMLEATEEINTS LW
R 55 3,13 M i Ak 1) 8 S 4 51 A TS B SE o

A EF G A NERE - SRRk
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A5 Z TR W 3E - B L A BRAR (WA LA
Feoaft = R A AT B AR R 2 T A BRAR > o A
SZHAFERBISEZIOAW T ER AR
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven executive Directors (the
“Executive Directors”) and four independent non-executive Directors
(the “Independent Non-executive Directors”). The members of the
Board during the year ended 30 June 2015 and as at 25 September
2015 are as follows:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth

Dr. SY Robin Chua

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

Mr. GO Patrick Lim

Mr. WONG Sai Tat
(resigned on 13 July 2015)

(Chairman and Executive Director)
(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Executive Director)

Currently, the Company has four Independent Non-executive
Directors and more than one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence and the
Board considers that each Independent Non-executive Director meets
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

and is independent.

For diversity of the members of the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills and knowledge, age, ethnicity, relevant years of experience and
expertise and relationships (including business, financial and family,
if any) among them and between the chairman and chief executive
officer, please refer to the “Profile of Management” and the section on
“Directors interests in competing business” in the “Directors’ Report”
on pages 15 to 19 and pages 20 to 31 respectively of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities and Accountabilities

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives and
development plans, monitoring the performance of the business and
senior management, and ensuring sound corporate governance of the
Group. It also monitors the financial performance, the internal controls
and risk management of the Group’s business operations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running the operations of the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board.

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management with department heads responsible for different
aspects of the business and functions of the Group. The Independent
Non-executive Directors serve the function of bringing independent
judgment on the development, performance, internal controls,
corporate governance and risk management of the Group through
their contributions in the meetings of the Board and committees of the
Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, a total of four regular Board
meetings were held at approximately quarterly intervals. Details of
Directors’ attendance record of such regular Board meetings during
the year are as follows:

Attendance/Nos. of

Board meetings

Directors to be attended
Mr. TAN Harry Chua 4/4
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 4/4
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 4/4
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 4/4
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 4/4
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 4/4
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 4/4
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 4/4
Dr. SY Robin Chua 4/4
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 4/4
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 4/4
Mr. WONG Sai Tat 4/4

(resigned on 13 July 2015)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Training and Development

For training and continuing professional development of Directors,
the Company provides relevant information and publications to all
Directors on a regular basis to keep them abreast of the latest changes
and development in the industry, commercial, legal, statutory and
regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its business,
and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions
and duties of a Director of a listed company to ensure that the
Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company also updates Directors from time to time on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Each newly
appointed Director (if any) receives induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forums or
training courses on relevant topics for their continuous professional
development. There are arrangements in place for Directors to obtain
continuing professional development at the Company’s expense

whenever necessary.

In accordance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’
training and continuous professional development, all Directors,
Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. TAN Lucio
Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming,
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, Mr. CHONG
Kim Chan, Kenneth, Dr. SY Robin Chua, Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John,
Mr. GO Patrick Lim and Mr. WONG Sai Tat (resigned on 13 July
2015) have participated in the training activities described above
including, amongst others, in-house briefing, luncheon talks, training
courses and/or seminars, as well as self-study and coaching and
mentoring provided to internal staff. Each Director has provided a

record of training they received during the year to the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of the chairman (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer (the “CEO”) of the Company are
segregated and separately undertaken by different officers to ensure a

balance of power and authority.

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, the Chairman, provides leadership and
is responsible for driving effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice, and overseeing
the Group’s overall direction and strategic planning. Dr. CHAN
Wing Kit, Frank, the CEO, is mainly responsible for implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the Board and

managing the business and affairs of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
(the Company has currently no other non-executive Directors) are
appointed for a term of two years subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The
Bye-laws stipulate that every Director will be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years at annual general meeting of
the Company, and being eligible for re-election.

Meanwhile, all Independent Non-executive Directors have to confirm
their respective independence annually pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules for their continuous appointment after reviewed and
assessed by Nomination Committee, and those serving for more than
9 years, their further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolutions to be approved by the shareholders of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee for overseeing specific aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each
committee is established with defined terms of reference, which are
posted on the website of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) since 2005 with terms of reference,
which meet the requirements set out in paragraph B.1.2 of the CG
Code. The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 30 June 2015 and as at 25 September 2015 are as follows:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Dr. SY Robin Chua

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing,
evaluating and/or recommending to the Board the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management; the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing the policy of such remuneration; and the specific
remuneration packages (if any) of individual Executive Directors and

senior management.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, a meeting was held by the
Remuneration Committee for, amongst others, the following in
accordance with its terms of reference:

1. ratified, confirmed and recommended the emoluments of the
respective Directors of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2015;

2. reviewed and recommended emolument policies of the Directors
of the Company and the employees of the Group; and

3. reviewed the retirement benefit schemes of the Group and the
share option schemes of the Company as incentive to Directors

and eligible employees.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Details of the attendance record of members in the meeting of

Remuneration Committee during the year are as follows:

Attendance/

No. of meeting

Members to be attended
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 1/1
Mr. TAN Harry Chua 1/1
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 1/1
Dr. SY Robin Chua 11
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 1/1

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) since 2012 with terms of reference, which
meet the requirements as set out in paragraph A.5.2 of the CG Code.
The members of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 30
June 2015 and as at 25 September 2015 are as follows:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua*

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. SY Robin Chua

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the composition, structure, size and diversity of the Board; formulating
and monitoring the policy for nomination of Directors; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Criteria adopted by the Nomination
Committee in considering whether the relevant personnel are suitable as
Directors include their qualifications, experience, expertise, skills and
knowledge, ethnical, age, cultural background and so on in view of the
provisions of the Listing Rules and the policy of diversity of the Board
(the “Policy”) as adopted by the Board and summarised as follows:
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Purpose
1. to increase diversity at the level of the Board;
2. to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and quality of its

performance; and
3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and
sustainable and balanced development of the Company.

Measurable Objectives

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to regional, industry
and professional experience, skills and knowledge, relevant length
of services, gender, age, race, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will
bring to the Board.

Monitoring and Review

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the Policy and

recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate) to the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the members of the Nomination
Committee performed the following works pursuant to action and
resolutions in writing signed by all members in accordance with its

terms of reference:

1. reviewed the size, composition and structure and diversity of the
Board, and assessed the balance of skills and experience of the
Board as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the business of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

2. reviewed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

3. reviewed retirement and re-election of Directors.

As such, no meetings were held by the Nomination Committee during
the year ended 30 June 2015.
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BHRZHEG Audit Committee

ANF B~ IWISLAEM L #EH % EE  The Board has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
(I RBEZRES ) > HMMEHEEMAS SIS Committee”) since 1999 with terms of reference, which meet the
SFRISECRIB T di A Bl » M4EJE N » B3 requirements as set out in paragraph C.3.3 of the CG Code. During the
o B A A 2 IR Ik BE K 5 it B I SF AIISS year, the Board has delegated the functions of corporate governance to
D31 BtH e R RE B IR T/ L B @ - the Audit Committee with additional terms of reference as set out in
HEZ—HAENA=ZTHIEEE N & paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code. The members of the audit committee
“E-AENHA T HHE - FBEEZE S during the year ended 30 June 2015 and as at 25 September 2015 are as

BT - follows:

AT oA (57 FH AT HH) Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth* (Independent Non-executive Director)

SY Robin Chua f# 1 (Fg s FHATHH) Dr. SY Robin Chua (Independent Non-executive Director)
EmAEEt (F s FEH T HEFH) Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John (Independent Non-executive Director)

GO Patrick Lim 5% & (s I 17 #E F) Mr. GO Patrick Lim (Independent Non-executive Director)

* EEERRGER *  Chairman of Audit Committee

WHEAG EEAE L PR The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:
B 4% W I 1) B A7 Relationship with the auditors

1. SUANEERBAT A BAL - o RAL M B 1. to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,

B 1) 2 =gy P AL A R reappointment and removal of the external auditor;

2. P R R VA B N B AN IE AL BT 2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
W8 SEVE K BLE DL RO ORI and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
HRE accordance with applicable standards;

BN - BB IER T BEE#  Review of the financial information, financial reporting system and

iy 3 internal control procedures

3. B B AR N A BB R TE Y e e E 3. to review and monitor integrity of financial statements of the

R AN m AR B~ P AR B IR Company and the annual report, half-year report and accounts
TH 3l B bl o e R TE B A B of the Company and to review significant financial reporting
[V 75 R 11 2 R A B judgments contained in them;

4. B AR M ER RS AR 4 to oversee the financial reporting system and procedures of
PERRT internal control of the Group;

HLE /09 B 7 Relationship with employees

5. MietaTAEEEE M BEMENR - 5. toreview arrangement for employees of the Group to raise
A ¥ 4 At T T AT B B AR B9 AN IE concerns about possible improprieties of financial reporting,
EAT AR BB E R s & internal control or other matters; and
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

Corporate governance function

to review and monitor corporate governance functions delegated
by the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, two meetings were held and
resolution in writing was passed by the Audit Committee for, amongst
others, the following in accordance with the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee:

recommended the re-appointment of the external auditor; and
reviewed the financial reporting system and procedures of
internal controls of the Group and the draft audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2014,

approved the engagement of the external auditor for reviewing
interim results; and reviewed the draft unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 31 December 2014; and

reviewed and monitored the policies and practices on corporate
governance under D.3.1 of the CG Code, and compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements as stated in corporate
governance report of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2014
and as disclosed in the interim report for the six months ended
31 December 2014.

Details of the attendance record of members in the meetings of Audit
Committee during the year are as follows:

Attendance/

Nos. of meetings
to be attended

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 2/2
Dr. SY Robin Chua 2/2
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 2/2
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 2/2
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% B Vi T 4> AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

WE _FE—HFENHZTHIE4EER > A  During the year ended 30 June 2015, audit and non-audit services were
O FE AL SO A g o B R O & 54T ([# provided to the Group by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor of the
Yo ) AR EERAEE L IEFEZIRY o Company (the “Auditor”). The analysis of services and remuneration
AN aZZE RE A B E AT X EAS BN paid and payable in connection therewith are as follows:

YT -

© 2 418 IR % % | Services provided Amount
W T HKS$'000

A% IR Audit services

. FRALEHREE - % — . Audit fee for consolidated financial statements
HHENH=ZTHILFE of the Group and mandatory provident funds and
A A IS IR TE M A 4E 13 defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
o 1l PR A 4 I B E it of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2015 1,180
R PR A ) W Y A%
2 1,180

I 4% IR 5 Non-audit services

. B E LA A . Fee for reviewing interim results for the six
“HA=Zt—R1AMA months ended 31 December 2014 180
O S A 180

* TR E —F—HAEN . Fee for reviewing preliminary announcement
A=+ HIFERIEE of final results and continuing connected
F VNSV ERT =Lk i transactions for the year ended 30 June 2015 69
UK §l 69

FENEE RGBS AL {24t & The Audit Committee is of the view that the Auditor’s independence and
ol A PR G I IR & S B U objectivity will not be affected by the provision of the abovementioned
1Y) 8 STk K BB o limited scope of the non-audit services to the Group.

WE BN HEHEGHFEL R B EHH  There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
B EHERML > BT ER AN AT E on the selection, re-appointment, resignation or dismissal of its external
BE AT AT AR — B R/ o auditor during the year under review.



126

SER-NE T - FAEEAER | R ARA A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

SR E )

o 295 B Y v 3 VA s e g 9 AT

T 75 S B A A AR T A T R IA
WAL > Sl COAR B E UE KB B g e e
S TE 55 A A8 1) S B0 T A B 5 A S BRI

12 S il R 3 AT A A O R AN AR T IR R
HIBA R 2% (AN ) 4k 30 i A SRR T B T %
B RAG I SE32E33H A -

A B

BWE-E-HENA=ZFTHILEFERN #F
T RELTRGCHIE & 5E A WAL E
R LR R LA AL AR AT > H A TEREAR -

o RKCFE BB T T 0 S WL A E
- REERECBI - EEMAR
. W A 85 MRz ~ RO Bk AN BAR B

o R SR BT R A R L0 5 K&
o HEEMEBEERE

WA K B T B AR - &
BRa B DR B B RE o A AR 4E
JBE A0 A A AR R 9 B AT RE S B AR 4
e SRR i 2 B K B4 O R R B i 2 R
HH SURE

AR
WE_F—-HAFAH=ZTHILEFER > K

NI/ B /= R e N S S
5532916 o

Ny

DIRECTORS' AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Auditor’s statement of reporting responsibilities and report
on material uncertainty (if any) of the Group are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 32 to 33 to this annual
report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Board and the Audit
Committee have conducted and completed a review in respect of the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group with the objectives
of ensuring that:

. high level management controls are adequately defined,

. operational controls are in place, sufficient and effective;

. income is properly received, recorded and supported;

B expenses are of proper nature and are properly approved; and
. assets are properly safeguarded.

Such review covers all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls, and risk management functions. No material
control failure or significant areas of concern or fraud which might
affect the interests of the shareholders of the Company were identified
during the reviews.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Ms. WONG Oi Yee, Polly
has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 30
June 2015.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company regards communication with its shareholders and
investors as an important means to enhance the transparency of
the Group and regularly collects views and feedback from them,
to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and investors. To this
end, the Company communicates with its shareholders through
various channels, including annual general meetings, special general
meetings, annual reports, notices of general meetings, circulars sent to
shareholders of the Company, announcements, press releases and other
corporate communications available on the website of the Company.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 12 December
2014 (“AGM”), management and external auditor of the Company
together with the chairman and members of the Board’s committees
attended the AGM to answer relevant questions raised by and
understand the views of the shareholders of the Company thereat. In
respect of the year ended 30 June 2015, an annual general meeting
of the Company will be held on 11 December 2015, at which the
Company will arrange for the Chairmen of the Board and committees
of the Board to attend and answer questions and proposals raised by
the shareholders of the Company thereat.

Details of Directors’ attendance record of general meeting(s) during
the year ended 30 June 2015 are as follows:

Attendance/No. of

general meetings

Directors to be attended
Mr. TAN Harry Chua 1/1
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 0/1
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 1/1
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 1/1
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 0/1
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 1/1
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 1/1
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 1/1
Dr. SY Robin Chua 0/1
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 1/1
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 1/1
Mr. WONG Sai Tat 1/1

(resigned on 13 July 2015)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders, investors and the media can make enquiries or proposals
to Board of the Company through the following means:

Telephone:  (852) 2881 5221

Fax: (852) 2881 5224
Post: 17th Floor
Eton Tower

8 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
Website: http://www.dynamic.hk
Email: info@dynamic-hk.com

By virtue of section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 (Bermuda) (as
amended), the procedures for shareholders to convene a special
general meeting and to put forward proposals at general meetings are:

1. The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Bye-laws shall,
on the requisition of member(s) of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
forthwith proceed duly to convene a special general meeting of
the Company.

2. The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the registered office of the Company at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

3. If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2015, there were no significant changes
in the Company’s constitutional document, namely, the memorandum
of association and Bye-laws which are posted on the website of the
Company.
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